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EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

FOR THE TRANSITION PERIOD FROM TO
Commission File Number 001-8833

HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its char}

Tennesse 62-144355¢E
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
incorporation or organization
209 10th Avenue South, Suite 45 37203
Nashville, Tennessee (Zip Code)

(Address of principal executive office

(615) 301-3100
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area gode

Securities Registered Pursuant To Section 12(b) Ohe Act:
None

Securities Registered Pursuant To Section 12(g) Ohe Act:
Common Stock, No Par Value

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Secti® or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (orsiech shorter period that the registrant was redquodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pastia@s. Yedx] No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiélers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is aontained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledgedéfinitive proxy or information statements incorgted by reference in Part 11 of this Form
10-K or any amendment to this Form 10iK.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant iaaelerated filer (as defined in Exchange Act RiZle-2). Yedd No

The aggregate market value of the Common Stoclkedsand outstanding and held by non-affiliates efRegistrant, based upon the closing
sales price for the Common Stock on the NASDAQ dd&ti Market on June 30, 2003 was $33,242,516.dtetive officers and directors
the registrant have been deemed, solely for thegser of the foregoing calculation, to be “affilisitef the registrant.

As of March 23, 2004, there were 20,455,998 shafréise Registrant’s common stock outstanding.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Registre’s definitive Proxy Statement for its 2004 Annualdleg of Shareholders are incorporated by refer@moePart Il|



hereof.

PART |
Iltem 1.
Iltem 2.
Iltem 3.
Iltem 4.
PART Il
Item 5.
Item 6.
Iltem 7.
Iltem 7A.
Item 8.
Iltem 9.
Iltem 9A.
PART llI
Item 10.
Iltem 11.
Iltem 12.
Iltem 13.
Item 14.
PART IV
Item 15.

HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

TABLE OF CONTENTS
ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

Business

Properties

Legal Proceeding

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holc

Market for Registrars Common Equity and Related Stockholder Mal

Selected Financial Da

Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operatior
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MarRisk

Financial Statements and Supplementary |

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants @ourting and Financial Disclosu
Controls and Procedur

Directors and Executive Officers of the Registt

Executive Compensatic

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners dahagement and Related Stockholder Mai
Certain Relationships and Related Transact

Principal Accountant Fees and Servi

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Remort-orm -K
Signatures

EX-23.1 CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
EX-31.1 SECTION 302 CEO CERTIFICATIO
EX-31.2 SECTION 302 CFO CERTIFICATIO
EX-32.1 SECTION 906 CEO CERTIFICATIO
EX-32.2 SECTION 906 CFO CERTIFICATIO

Page

15
15
15

16
16
17
28
29
49
49

49
49
49
49
49

50
52




Table of Contents
PART |

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statetsewithin the meaning of Section 21E of the SemsiExchange Act of 1934. Such
forward-looking statements include, among othdmssé statements including the words “expects,”itgrdates,” “intends,” “believes,” “may,”
“will,” “should,” “continue” and similar languagerdhe negative of such terms or other comparabieit®logy. Although we believe that the
expectations reflected in the forward-looking statats are reasonable, HealthStream’s actual remajdiffer significantly from those
projected in the forward-looking statements. Factbat might cause or contribute to such differsrinelude, but are not limited to, those
discussed in the section “Risk Factors” and elsegvirethis document. In addition, factors that we 1@ot currently aware of could harm our
future operating results. You should carefully esvithe risks described in other documents Heakda§irfiles from time to time with the
Securities and Exchange Commission. You are caadioot to place undue reliance on forward-lookitagesnents, which speak only as of
the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Heaitham undertakes no obligation to publicly relessgrevisions to the forward-looking
statements or reflect events or circumstances thitedate of this document.

Iltem 1. Business
OVERVIEW AND HISTORY

HealthStream, Inc. (“HealthStream” or the “Compgnytovides Internebased solutions and services to meet the traimdgeducation nee:
of the healthcare industry. Our learning solutiars helping healthcare organizations to improvepiamce, develop their workforce, and
reduce risks. Focused primarily on healthcare drgdions (HCO) and pharmaceutical and medical deg@mpanies (PMD), HealthStream’s
customers are comprised of over 780 healthcarentgi@ons (predominately acute-care facilitiesptighout the United States and include
relationships with eight of the top ten pharmacemlttompanies and nine of the top ten medical éestianpanies.

The Company'’s flagship product is the “HealthStrdagarning Center™,” our proprietary, Internet-bakeining platform, which currently
has approximately 839,000 contracted hospital-bagbdcribers. Also added in the last year are amngetency Compass™, an online
performance assessment and management solutiohlcamitalDirect™, a software application that defiv product training in hospitals.
Services provided to and on behalf of pharmaceldicd medical device companies, include live anthereducation and training activities
for both healthcare professionals, as well as naddiclustry sales representatives. Medical devigepganies also provide commercial sup|
for device training within hospitals through ourdpitalDirect™ platform, and along with pharmaceaiticompanies, provide commercial
support for some of our continuing education atiési

Headquartered in Nashville, Tennessee, the Comwasyincorporated in 1990 and began marketing tesmet-based solutions in

March 1999. Including a satellite office in Denv€glorado, HealthStream has 143 employees. Froimitzad focus on technology-based
training, HealthStream evolved to provide full-Seevdelivery of training and education for the hieedre industry. The Company completed
its initial public offering (IPO) in April of 2000.

INDUSTRY BACKGROUND

According to the Centers for Medicare and Medi@edvices (CMS), the healthcare industry exceededtiillion of spending in 2002, or
approximately 14 percent of the gross domesticyrbdospital care expenditures accounted for $tlibn, or 31.7%, of the $1.4 trillion
industry. Approximately 10.4 million professionalge employed in the health care segment of the siicreconomy, with slightly more than
half, or 5.3 million, employed in healthcare orgaations, our target market for the HealthStreanrhieg Center™ and HospitalDirect™.

The 5.3 million healthcare organization professismaedominately work in the nation’s approximat®&/@00 acute-care hospitals, and are
required by federal mandates and accrediting bdadig®in in a number of areas. This training ines safety training mandated by both the
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OJHsd the Joint Commission on Accreditation of ezre Organizations, or JCAHO,
for all institutional-based healthcare workers &#l &s training on patient information confidentiakequired under the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA).

In hospitals, staffing issues and personnel shesthgve also contributed to the need for enhancekfevce development as well as
additional competency based training. AccordinthedbAmerican Hospital Association (AHA, 2002), tia¢e of unfilled positions for
registered nurses in 2001 was 13 percent. Theaf®df nurses is projected to grow to over 800/0R2020. As reported by themerican
Journal of Nursin¢(April, 2003), offering training and educationalpmptunities to hospital personnel is increasinglgammended as a
retention and recruitment incentive.

In addition, to keep abreast of the latest devekmmand meet licensing, certification, and cred#éng requirements, many healthcare
professionals must obtain continuing education.t@amg education requirements include continuidgaation for nurses, emergency
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medical services personnel, first responder peronadiologic personnel and physicians. Pharmagaduand medical device companies i
also provide their medical industry sales represerms with training mandated for the healthcadkgiry and training for new products. They
also provide support for education and trainingtfmse audiences that use their products in heathmrganizations.

Finally, the hospital industry continues to opetatéler intense pressure to reduce costs as a oésattuctions in government reimbursement
and increased focus on cost containment consisfiimparticipation of patients in managed care paogs. In addition, hospitals, as well as
pharmaceutical and medical device companies contim@xperience rising operating costs, coupletl imitreased pressure to measure and
report on the outcomes of the dollars spent onitrgi Our products and services are designed tad thege needs by reducing healthcare
organizations’ costs of training while improvingtaing outcomes, enhancing reporting capabilites, supporting customers’ business
objectives.

HEALTHSTREAM'S SOLUTIONS
Services to healthcare organizations

HealthStream’s solutions help healthcare orgarminatmeet their ongoing training, education, andp@nce needs. We bring training and
education content together with administrative ar@hagement tools through our Internet-based ptatftre HealthStream Learning
Center™ (HLC). This combination supports health@ministrators in configuring training to meet firecise needs of different groups of
employees, modifying training materials, and docotimg that training has been completed. At Decen3ie2003, 839,000 healthcare
professionals had contracted subscriptions forsewvices. Pricing for the HLC is subscription baseith fees based on the number of users,
content provided and other factors. We offer tragnimplementation and account management sertodegilitate integration of this
technology product into our customer’s operatingr@mments. Fees for training are based on the sintkefforts of the personnel involved.

Our online content is hosted in a central dataarethiat allows end users Internet access to HL@cgsy, thereby eliminating the need for
onsite local implementations of installed learnmgnagement products. As a result, a significantbarrof our customers that historically
used our installed learning management products tramsitioned to our Internet-based platform. Datalled learning management software
contracts historically consisted of an upfrontitise fee, additional content sales, and ongoing ter@mce and support.

We also offer our customers an online competensgsasnent and performance management solution, GenggeCompass™. Competency
assessment will soon be a requirement of hosgitadshealthcare organizations for maintaining adgagdn, based on new JCAHO
requirements to evaluate, document, and reporbpeeince competencies. The Competency Compass peoaideffective means of
determining which competencies are associatedesitih position and evaluating and documenting coenggtassessments. To facilitate this
process, a comprehensive dictionary of job profilesd in healthcare organizations is included im@etency Compass that lists
corresponding competencies associated with eatlfoeé jobs. This product delivers a custom traiiragram of courses available through
the HLC that uniquely responds to the needs idedt#éind strengths discovered of individual emplsyee

Along with the Internet-based HLC, we also offealttecare organizations with full-service capal@htito convert existing course materials to
a Web-enabled format through our HealthStream AirthdCenter™. Pricing for this product is subsddptbased, with fees based on the
number of users and a separate fee for licenses.

Our strategy is to expand our services to existurggomers and grow our existing customer base moapmately 839,000 contracted
subscribers using the Internet-based HLC, whildinamg to transition our installed learning managat product customers to our Internet-
based HLC. We believe our existing sales forceraatket conditions offer us the opportunity to coné to grow our HLC customer base.

Services to pharmaceutical and medical device compies

Our services to pharmaceutical companies and matbeice companies include live and online educati@nd training activities for
healthcare professionals, as well as online trgifdn medical industry sales representatives. Aaamedited provider of continuing educal
activities for physicians, nurses, pharmacistsathdr healthcare professionals, our services imchldnning, development, implementation
and administration of these activities. Servicedif@ activities can further include developmehtourse agendas, coordination of subject
matter experts, preparation of course material$ ragistration of attendees. Pricing for live aityigervices are based on the scope of the
project, including the size of the event, numbeatténdees and other factors. Live educationalities also include preceptorships and
proctorships for various specialties that take @haithin the hospital environment. Preceptorships aroctorships are live interactive
activities with small groups of healthcare professis, designed to provide them with superviseagggpce in a clinical environment. Prici
for these activities are usually based on a pendée basis. Pricing for online activities
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varies from project to project, and is based oretand efforts of the personnel involved. Mandatathing for manufacturer sales force
personnel is priced on a per user basis. We afso lodth live and archived Web casts of medicatpdures, thought-leader discussions, and
other events in a cost effective manner to fatditae provision of training or continuing educatitn addition, we can develop custom
courseware for our customers’ specific trainingdsedricing for these services is generally basetinoe and efforts involved. Our
development group responsible for such servicdades programmers, instructional and multimedidagiess, graphic artists, and project
managers. In addition to our development employwesalso utilize third party resources as needea: &nd online event activities may be
supported by an educational grant by a pharmaegutianedical device company. Fees or the amoutfiteofjrant vary based on the scope of
the event, the target audience, publicity and gpleeipheral services related to the event.

HospitalDirect™ , a newly introduced product, is intended to legeraur subscriber network of hospitsised personnel by delivering onl
product training and other educational activitie®tigh our Internet-based HLC. Pricing charged édlical device and pharmaceutical
companies includes initial content developmentises/and subsequent subscription pricing basetl@number of hospital facilities selected
to receive the training and education.

We also provide live educational activities for &g and technicians conducted within healthcar@nizgtions, as well as continuing
education study guides and educational activitrethe exhibit floor at the annual AORN (AssociatmfrPeriOperative Registered Nurses)
Congress. All of these activities are supporte@iilyer pharmaceutical or medical device compades.strategy includes expanding our
revenues by further developing customer relatiqgpeshind by leveraging our existing base of Intebasted HLC customers for deployment of
pharmaceutical and medical device training and &tilure through both existing products as well asettgyment of new products.

ACQUISITIONS

We have made one acquisition during the past tygaes, in January 2001. We acquired six compani@800. To date, our acquisitions have
focused on adding products or services, increasimgustomer base and/or providing enabling teagies that are complementary to our
existing business. We believe we have recognizedaies of scale through acquisitions in marketshich we already had a presence. In
addition, we have expanded our product and senffegings by leveraging products that can operateur existing technology platform. To
date, all acquisitions have been accounted fogu$ia purchase method of accounting.

CUSTOMERS

We provide our training and education solutionsustomers across a broad range of entities wittérhealthcare industry, including
healthcare organizations (including governmentties)i and pharmaceutical and medical device conggafiuring 2003, one customer
represented more than 10% of our net revenue. \Weedeapproximately 15% of net revenue from HCAG.Iduring 2003. The following is a
partial list of customers that have purchased atrested for products and services from Health&trea

Healthcare Organizations Pharmaceutical Companies Medical Device Companie:
HCA Inc. Merck & Co, Inc. Cordis Corporatiol
CHRISTUS Healtt Biogen IDEC Pharmaceutice Aesculap, Inc
Trinity Health (Novi, MI) McKesson Corporatio

Waterbury Hospita
SALES, MARKETING, AND CUSTOMER SUPPORT

We market our products and services primarily thfoaur direct sales force. As of December 31, 2008 sales and relationship
management personnel consisted of approximategngiioyees based at our corporate headquarterssimvilla, Tennessee and in Denver,
Colorado, as well as remote home office salesimest Our geographically dispersed field sales wimgdion is divided into three territory
teams, each team consisting of sales personnedddoon our hospital audience, sales personnelddoms our pharmaceutical and medical
device audience, content sales specialists, sapgm#g specialists, and product specialists albigé regional sales manager. The sales
support specialists assist the field sales forceebgonding to initial inquiries, qualifying salesds, preparing proposals and preparing sales
contracts. In addition to sales professionals, lse employ program managers, who are responsiblév/éoevent services and account
managers who work to develop and expand relatipssihicluding contract renewals, with our customers

We conduct a variety of marketing programs to primmour products and services, including produdlogs, user groups and trade shows,
telemarketing campaigns, public relations, distidouof product specific literature, online pronwatj direct mail and advertising. We also
conduct geographically focused meetings with tacgstomers and user groups with existing custondensually, we conduct a national
users’ group in Nashville known as The Summit. Vileehan in-house marketing team that is respongiblinese initiatives and for working
with, and supporting, our product managers andsdakee. We believe our ability to establish andntzan long-term customer relationships,
adoption of our products and services and recusatgs are dependent on the strength of our custeenéce, operations and support team.
Our customer service, operations and support teamsists of approximately 26
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employees located in our corporate headquartédsighville. This team provides customer supportid @sers through a toll-free telephone
line as well as electronic mail. Our representatizee trained to understand our philosophy andgpecific sales, marketing and support
issues. This team also maintains an ongoing diaitigour customer base to ensure a complete uradetisty of customer needs. These
personnel also assist with ongoing issues andriaof our products as well as to ensure anticipaémewals and incremental sales are
achieved. The remaining personnel on this teames@onsible for training and implementation of Ht@Stomers.

TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT

HealthStream’s technology infrastructure is basedmopen architecture and is designed to be saaliable, and expandable. Our software
is a combination of proprietary applications, thiarty database software, and operating systerhsupgort acquisition and conversion of
content, hosting and management of that contebtjqation of our Web sites, downloads of courseweggistration, tracking of users, and
reporting of information for both internal and extal use. We have designed this infrastructurdlésveeach component to be independently
scaled by adding readily available hardware anthsoé components.

Our network infrastructure, Web sites, and serttas deliver our services are hosted by third paroviders. Our primary data center and
hosting facility is in Chicago, while a second de¢ater and hosting facility in Nashville (with ecend vendor) is scheduled to be operational
in the second quarter of 2004. Both providers na@inbur equipment in a secure environment, inclyamltiple redundancies in power
sources and network connections. Our providerdiifgp€enters are connected to the Internet thronghiple, redundant high-speed fiber
optic circuits. Monitoring of all servers, networlksd systems is performed by Company personnalaamtinuous basis. Together with our
providers, we employ numerous levels of enterdiiegvall systems to protect our databases, custamfi@mation, and content library.
Backups of all databases, data, and content filep@formed on a daily basis. Data back-up tapear@hived at a secure remote location on
a weekly basis.

COMPETITION

The healthcare education industry is highly fragteénvaries significantly in delivery methodse. , written materials, live events, satellite
broadcasts, video, CD-ROM products and online prtgjuand is composed of a wide variety of entiti@speting for customers. The sheer
volume of healthcare information available to $gteontinuing education needs, rapid advances idicaédevelopments, and the time
constraints that healthcare professionals face ntak#icult to quickly and efficiently access tlm@ntinuing education content most relevant
to an individual's practice or profession. Histailg, healthcare professionals have received caimntgeducation and training through offline
publications, such as medical journals and CD-RCdns, by attending conferences and seminars. Iiaddother healthcare workers and
pharmaceutical and medical device manufacturetessnd internal regulatory personnel usually fiutieir education and training needs
through instructor-led programs from external vasdw internal training departments. While thesgragches satisfy the ongoing
requirements, they are limited in that they aredgily costly and inconvenient. In addition, liveurses are often limited in the breadth of
offerings and do not provide a method for trackiragning completion. The related results of theaditional methods, both from a business
and compliance standpoint, are difficult to trackl aneasure.

In addition to the competing delivery methods diésat above, we also have direct competitors. A remolb smaller privately held compan
offer competitive installed and Web based learmmanagement products to the healthcare industryaldéecompete with large scale learning
management system providers such as DigitalThiAB/ASand SumTotal Systems that provide their servimemultiple industries, including
healthcare. Primedia also provides healthcare &xtaentinuing education via its satellite netwarg§idther with certain transcript capabilities.
Finally, over the past year we have also seen@ease in a teaming approach between consultingeghdology entities to address larger
scale projects.

We believe our solutions, which include both pradwand services that facilitate training for heedtte professionals, a wide assortment of
content, a mechanism for measuring results, andhHigy to provide all services on a single platfoover the Internet, provide us with a
competitive advantage. We believe that the prifapenpetitive factors affecting the marketing dearning services to the healthcare
industry include:

- features of the HLC product, including reportingamagement functionality, scalability, and the &pilo track utilization and result

» scope and variety of Internet-based learningerttravailable, including mandated content for OSBIBAHO, and HIPAA
requirements, competer-based content, as well as the ability of entitieadd their own We-enabled conten

« scope and quality of professional services offeiecluding training and the expertise and tecéinknowledge of the providers’
employees
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ability to access and leverage an existing custdrase to increase exposure for pharmaceutical &uical device companie
* pricing;

 customer service and support; ¢

effectiveness of sales and marketing efforts, ampany reputatior

Collectively, these capabilities provide us witle tibility to improve the quality of healthcare byproving the quality and access of
healthcare training.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION OF THE INTERNET AND THE HEALT HCARE INDUSTRY
The Internet

The laws and regulations that govern our busineaage rapidly. The United States government angalernments of some states and
foreign countries have attempted to regulate di@&/bn the Internet. The following are some ofekielving areas of law that are relevant to
our business:

 Privacy Law.Current and proposed federal, state and foreigragyiregulations and other laws restricting théeation, use,
confidentiality and disclosure of personal inforimaatcould limit our ability to collect informatioar use the information in our
databases or derived from other sources, to generaénues. It may be costly to implement secorityther measures designed to
comply with any new legislatiol

< Encryption LawsMany copyright owner associations have lobbiedfélderal government for laws requiring copyrighteatenials
transmitted over the Internet to be digitally emtegd in order to track rights and prevent unautteatiuse of copyrighted materials. If
these laws are adopted, we may incur substantsés ¢o comply with these requirements or changeviaewe do busines

» Content RegulatiorBoth foreign and domestic governments have adamedporoposed laws governing the content of material
transmitted over the Internet. These include laalating to obscenity, indecency, libel and defaoratiWe could be liable if content
delivered by us violates these regulatic

« Information Security Accountability RegulaticA couple of bills are pending in Congress that daelquire public companies to obt:
certification by an independent third party of tempany’s computer information security. If thigilation is enacted, we may incur
costs to comply with these security requiremente freliminary nature of such legislation and #eklof related guidance makes
estimation of related costs difficu

« Sales and Use TaXhrough December 31, 2003, we collected salespusther taxes on taxable transactions in all statevhich we
have employees. While HealthStream expects thatibproach is appropriate, other states or fojeigsdictions may seek to impose
tax collection obligations on companies like ug #r@gage in online commerce. If they do, thesegakibns could limit the growth of
electronic commerce in general and limit our apilit profit from the sale of our services over thiernet.

Laws and regulations directly applicable to e-comma@nd Internet communications are becoming mareatent. Recent sessions of
Congress enacted Internet laws regarding onlingragit infringement. Congress continues considelavgs regarding Internet taxation. The
dynamic nature of this regulatory environment iases the uncertainty regarding the marketplacedtrgdasuch regulation. The enactmen
any additional laws or regulations may increaseocwmst of conducting business or otherwise harmbosimess, financial condition and
operating results.

Regulation of Education and Training for Healthcare Professionals

Allied Disciplines.Various allied health professionals are requireditain continuing education to maintain their tises. For example,
emergency medical services personnel may be refjigracquire up to 20 continuing education hoursypar. These requirements vary by
state and depend on the classification of the eyeplo

Occupational Safety and Health Administration (O$H2SHA regulations require employers to provide fragrto employees to minimize
the risk of injury from various potential workplabazards. Employers in the healthcare industryeqaired to provide training with respect
to various topics, including blood borne pathogexgosure control, laboratory safety and tubercslipgection control. OSHA regulations
require employers to keep records of their emplsyeempletion of training with respect to these lwglace hazards.
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Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare &rgations (JCAHOJCAHO mandates that employers in the healthcangsing provide
certain workplace safety and patient interactiaming to employees. JCAHO required training magude programs on infection control,
patient bill of rights, radiation safety and inadleeporting. Healthcare organizations are requiogorovide and document training on these
topics to receive JCAHO accreditation. In additid@AHO imposes continuing education requirementphysicians that relate to each
physician’s specific staff appointments.

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability AetIPAA).HIPAA regulations require organizations that maimtar transmit health
information electronically in connection with cdrtdransactions to provide reasonable and apprieps@feguards to protect the integrity and
confidentiality of individually identifiable healttare information. These healthcare organizatioasequired to establish, maintain and
provide training with regard to their policies gomcedures for protecting the integrity and coniitiity of individually identifiable
healthcare information. Healthcare organizatioesraquired to document training on these topicuaport their compliance.

Continuing Education (CE)tate nurse practice laws are usually the soureathiority for establishing the state board of img:swhich then
establishes the state’s CE requirements for priofiegsnurses. Continuing education programs areigeal through accredited providers
approved by the American Nurses Credentialing Gebdenmission on Accreditation and/or the state d@dmursing. CE requirements vary
widely from state to state. Twenty-nine states iegsome form of CE in order to renew a nurse’srige. In some states, the CE requirement
only applies to re-licensure of advance practicses, or additional CEs may be required of thisgaty of nurses. On average, 12 to 15 CEs
are required annually, with reporting generallyaoni-annual basis. Certifications may also reqo@metinuing education credits (e.g., CNOR —
certification of perioperative nursing).

Continuing Medical Education (CMES$tate licensing boards, professional organizatémmtsemployers require physicians to certify thayth
have accumulated a minimum number of continuingica@ducation hours to maintain their licensesaésally, each state’s medical
practice laws authorize the state’s board of maditd establish and track CME requirements. THoty-state medical licensing boards
currently have CME requirements. The number of GMErs required by each state ranges up to 50 Ipaurgear. Other sources of CME
requirements are state medical societies and peastiecialty boards. The failure to obtain the igtpiamount and type of CME could result
in non-renewal of the physician’s license to piEetinedicine and/or membership in a medical or p@aspecialty society. The American
Medical Association’s, or AMA’s, Physician Recogoit Award, or PRA, is the most widely recognizeditieate for acknowledging
physician completion of a CME course. The AMA clfiss continuing education activities as eitheregairy 1, which includes formal CME
activities, or category 2, which includes most mfal activities. Sponsors want to designate CMiviiets for AMA PRA category 1 becau
this has become the benchmark for quality in folynaiganized educational activities. Almost all ages nationwide that require CME
participation specify AMA PRA category 1 credit. @mstitutions and organizations accredited toyle CME can designate an activity for
AMA PRA category 1. The Accreditation Council onr@iauing Medical Education, or ACCME, is responsibir the accreditation of
medical schools, state medical societies and dtisétutions and organizations that provide CME\aiiés for a national or regional audience
of physicians. Only institutions and organizatians accredited. The ACCME and state medical sesietd not accredit or approve individ
activities. State medical societies, operating utite aegis of the ACCME, accredit institutions anganizations that provide CME activities
primarily for physicians within the state or boridgr states. We are an accredited provider of CMEheyACCME.

Office of the Inspector General (OIG) of the Depantnent of Health and Human Services (HHS)

The OIG issued Compliance Program Guidelines farfhaceutical Manufacturers (Guidelines) in ApriD30This document includes
guidelines related to continuing educational atiigisupported by pharmaceutical and medical degagpanies. The Guidelines could affect
the type and extent of future support for our aauntig education activities. The trade associatfonshe pharmaceutical and medical device
industries (PhRMA and AdvaMed, respectively) alsonpulgated their own codes of ethics in respongkeadsuidelines. The Company
follows the rules and guidelines provided by ACCMENCC, and other continuing education accreditindibs to ensure that its continuing
education programming is free from commercial biad consistent with the OIG Guidelines.

The U.S. Food and Drug Administration and the Fedeal Trade Commission

Current FDA and FTC rules and enforcement actiosragulatory policies or those that the FDA or i€ may develop in the future could
have a material adverse effect on our ability twvjate existing or future applications or service®tr end users or obtain the necessary
corporate sponsorship to do so. The FDA and the f€gGlate the form, content and dissemination loéliag, advertising and promotional
materials, including direct-toensumer prescription drug and medical device didiey, prepared by, or for, pharmaceutical, bibtedogy ol
medical device companies. The FTC regulates ovectiunter drug advertising and, in some cases,aaledievice advertising. Generally,
regulated companies must limit their advertising promotional materials to discussions of the FOps+aved claims and, in limited
circumstances, to a limited number of claims ngiraped by the FDA. Therefore, any information thedmotes the use of pharmaceutical or
medical device products that is presented withseuvices is subject to the full array of the FDAl &TC requirements and enforcement
actions. We believe that banner advertisementgisgpship links and any

6




Table of Contents

educational programs that lack independent editooiatrol that we may present with our serviceslddne subject to FDA or FTC regulation.
While the FDA and the FTC place the principal burdé compliance with advertising and promotiongufations on the advertiser, if the
FDA or FTC finds that any regulated informationgeeted with our services violates FDA or FTC refjoifes, they may take regulatory
action against us or the advertiser or sponsdnaifinformation. In 1996, the FDA announced it vbdévelop a guidance document
expressing a broad set of policies dealing withpiteenotion of pharmaceutical, biotechnology and icedievice products on the Internet.
Although the FDA has yet to issue that guidanceudwent, agency officials continue to predict itsrgual release. The FDA guidance
document may reflect new regulatory policies thatertightly regulate the format and content of potional information on the Internet.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY AND OTHER PROPRIETARY RIGHTS

We obtain a portion of our content under licenseagents with publishers or authors, through asségs or work for hire arrangements
with third parties and from internal staff develagmh We require our content partners to represahtaarrant that their content does not
infringe on any third-party copyrights and thatyttave the right to provide their content and halbtained all third-party consents necessary
to do so. Our content partners also agree to indgmgs against liability we might sustain due te ttontent they provide.

To protect our proprietary rights, we rely gengralh copyright, trademark and trade secret lawsfidentiality agreements with employees
and third parties and license agreements with dtards, vendors and customers. We own federalsemirk registrations for the marks
“HEALTHSTREAM,” “HOSPITALDIRECT” and “OR PROTOCOL.”

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The Company files reports with the Securities ardhange Commission (SEC), including annual repamt§&orm 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q and other reports from time to time. Phblic may read and copy any materials we file whith SEC at the SEC’s Public
Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, NW, WashindgiiD 20549. The public may obtain information on diperation of the Public Reference
Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The Gowps an electronic filer and the SEC maintainsrégrnet site at http://www.sec.gov
that contains the reports, proxy and informati@ieshents, and other information filed electronicalur website address is
www.healthstream.com. Please note that our webdileess is provided as an inactive textual referemty. We make available free of
charge through our website, the annual report amHA®-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, curremtorts on Form 8-K, and all
amendments to those reports as soon as reasomabticable after such material is electronicallgdiwith or furnished to the SEC. The
information provided on our website is not partto$ report, and is therefore not incorporateddfgnence unless such information is
otherwise specifically referenced elsewhere in tpsort.

OUR EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2003 we employed 143 personss@cess will depend in large part upon our ahiditattract and retain qualified
employees. We face competition in this regard faither companies, but we believe that we maintaodgelations with our employees. We
are not subject to any collective bargaining agees

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following is a brief summary of the businespearience of each of the executive officers of tleen@any. Officers of the Company are
elected by the Board of Directors and serve apthasure of the Board of Directors. The followiable sets forth certain information
regarding the executive officers of the Company:

Name Age Position
Robert A. Frist, Jr 37 Chief Executive Officer, President and ChairmathefBoard of Director
Arthur E. Newmar 55 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
Michael Pote 42 Senior Vice Presidel
Fred Perne 50 Senior Vice Presidel
Susan A. Brownit 39 Vice President of Finance and Corporate Contr

Robert A. Frist, Jr., one of our co-founders, rawead as our chief executive officer and chairmiathe board of directors since 1990 and
president since 2001. Mr. Frist serves on the bohdirectors of HealthLeaders, Inc., a healthgarelisher and HearingPlanet, Inc., an on
hearing aid distribution company. He graduated waiachelor of Science in business with conceninatin finance, economics and
marketing from Trinity University.

Arthur E. Newman has served as our chief finaraffdder and senior vice president since January026@om April 1990 to August 1999,
Mr. Newman served as executive vice president eeéng finance, human resources, information systerdscustomer service and
fulfillment for Lippincott, Williams and Wilkins,drmerly Waverly, Inc., a publicly traded medicalesces publisher. In May
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1998, Waverly was acquired by Wolters Kluwer anagad with Wolters Kluwer’s existing U.S. based neadlpublisher, Lippincott-Raven
Publishers. From August 1999 to January 2000, Mmvidan served as the chief technology officer foltéfs Kluwer’s scientific, technical
and medical companies consisting of five separaits.uMr. Newman serves on the board of directbidenlthLeaders, Inc., a healthcare
publisher. Mr. Newman holds a Bachelor of Sciemcehiemistry from the University of Miami and a Marst of Business Administration frc
Rutgers University.

Michael Pote has served as our senior vice presgiece August 1997. From January 1996 to AuguS7 1®r. Pote served as vice president
of Columbia Health Care Network, a managed caréractor. From August 1994 to June 1996, Mr. Poteeskas vice president and
administrator for Centennial Medical Center. Mrtd*eceived a Bachelor of Science in educationsalésters of Science in education from
Syracuse University.

Fred Perner has served as senior vice presidarg Biavember 2000 and senior director from July 2008ovember 2000. From

January 1999 until June 2000, Mr. Perner serveitesdent of Education Design, Inc., a company sedwby HealthStream in July 2000.
Mr. Perner served as corporate director of margeftin the Association of periOperative Registereddés from 1996 to 1999. From 1976 to
1988, Mr. Perner served various positions, inclgdiite president of marketing and business devetoprior the medical device group of
Bristol Myers Squibb. Mr. Perner holds a BachelbBoience in general management and a Masterssme&ss Administration from Indiana
University. Mr. Perner also holds a J.D. from tha@uérsity of Denver College of Law.

Susan A. Brownie has served as our vice presiddirtance and corporate controller since Novemt8991 From August 1986 until 1999,
Ms. Brownie worked for KPMG LLP, a public accourgiand consulting firm, most recently as a senionagar. She holds a Bachelor of
Business Administration from the College of Willimand Mary and is a certified public accountant.

RISK FACTORS

We believe that the risks and uncertainties deedriielow and elsewhere in this document are timeipal material risks facing the Company
as of the date of this report. In the future, weylnacome subject to additional risks that are notently known to us. Our business, financial
condition or results of operations could be matigredversely affected by any of the following réskrhe trading price of our common stock
could decline due to any of the following risks.

Risks related to our business model.
Our relatively short operating history makes evatiry our business difficult.

Although we were incorporated in 1990, we did mitiate our online operations until March 1999. &result, we have only a short operating
history on which you can base an evaluation ofbausiness and prospects. Our prospects must bedeoediin light of the risks, uncertainti
expenses and difficulties frequently encountereddayppanies in their early stages of developmenticodarly companies introducing new
methods of delivering products and services intawious market like the healthcare industry. Qilufe to successfully address these risks
and uncertainties could have a material adversetedin our financial condition. Some of these riskd uncertainties relate to our ability to:

 continue to attract and maintain a large basmisfomers, both on the healthcare organizatiorttegharmaceutical and medical
device sides of the busine:

« develop and maintain a scalable infrastructurduding additional hardware and software, custoamel business support, systems and
personnel, to support our busine

« develop and introduce desirable services and cdimgp&ontent;
« establish and maintain strategic relationships withtent providers or partners; ¢

 respond effectively to competitive and technolobétvelopments
Our sales cycle is lengthy and can vary widely.

The period from our initial contact with a potehtastomer and the first purchase of our solutipihie customer typically ranges from three
to nine months, and in some cases has extended fomticer. The range in the sales cycle can be ineplday factors including an increasing
trend towards more formal requests for proposald(B) process as well as formal budget timelinegelvimpact timing of purchases by
target customers. As a result of both of thesefactve have only limited ability to forecast tirainhg and type of sales. This, in turn, mak
more difficult to predict quarterly financial perfoance.
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Failure to effectively manage growth of our operatis and infrastructure could disrupt our operatiorend prevent us from generating the
revenues we expect.

We currently are experiencing a period of expansiosur customer utilization patterns and relatédaistructure. We anticipate continued
expansion in subscriber utilization of our Interbased learning products and other services. Tagwour growth, we must successfully
implement, constantly improve and effectively agliour operational and financial systems. Our exjstr planned operational and financial
systems may not be sufficient to support our growth

The market for online training and continuing edudebn in the healthcare industry is relatively newnd still evolving.

Uncertainty as to the level of demand and markegptance for online training and continuing edweath the healthcare industry exposes us
to a high degree of risk. Although our sales of ARcontent during 2002 and 2003 were promising,caenot be sure that the healthcare
community will completely adopt online training acontinuing education as a complement of, or adtéve to, traditional sources of training
and continuing education. If the market for onlireening and continuing education fails to develdgyelops more slowly than expected,
becomes saturated with competitors, or e-learnoes chot prove to be an effective method for trginour business will suffer.

Failure to adequately address our customers’ ne@dsur products and services could prevent our aipiated growth in revenues.

Our management may not be able to effectively ilenhanage and exploit existing and emerging maokgortunities to meet the needs of
our customers. If we do not adequately manage mguet and service innovation opportunities, owibess will suffer.

Within the healthcare industry, our customer chaniseare focused on two segments: healthcare orgatimes and pharmaceutical/
medical device companies. We rely on spending withiese two segments and our business may suffénéncial pressures cause our
potential or existing customers to cut back on aervices

There are several economic factors that have ham@act on the nation’s approximately 5,000 acate tospitals. Some of these factors
include labor costs, which constituted 40 percé@®082 hospital revenues, according to the Cerfiterledicare and Medicaid (CMS), with
half of that allocated for staffing nurses. Aldwe reduced Medicare payment increases that reduttedthe Balanced Budget Act of 1997 .
the lower payments that most hospitals acceptad fmanaged care companies in the last several lagesboth had an adverse financial
effect on the hospital segment. These financiadqres, along with several major hospital defaults bankruptcies, have resulted in limited
access to capital for hospitals. As HealthStredarget market within the healthcare industry, hiadgifinancial pressures are salient in
achieving our business objectives.

Financial analysts generally believe that medieafice companies enjoy higher revenues and eargiroygh, relative to their medical supply
company counterparts, although they're considerecenolatile. The medical device industry is higbbncentrated; the largest two percent
of the 6,000 U.S. medical device firms log neawdyf lof the industry’s sales, according to the CMBaddition, relatively short product life
cycles for medical devices make the managementramileting strategies particularly crucial in thégment. These economic factors
contribute to the volatility of this customer chahfor HealthStream.

The top ten pharmaceutical companies account faes@ent of U.S. drug sales, with the top compamging a ten percent market share of
the U.S. pharmaceutical market in 2001, accordingMS. Successful research and development iseheltver for long-term growth, yet
this may be held constant or reduced during poofinches—like that experienced by some companidisegsatent expires on their
blockbuster drugs. Both branded and generic phazutmal companies fiercely litigate intellectugtisoperty and, as a result, may experience
adverse financial consequences. As one of our ietomer channels, these characteristics of thengwutical and medical device segment
could have an impact on HealthStream.

We may not be able to maintain our competitive piosi against current and potential competitors, esjally those with significantly
greater financial, marketing, technical and otheesources

Several of our competitors have longer operatistphies and significantly greater financial, teciahi marketing and other resources than us,
and several of the larger e-learning companies frane time-to-time announced their intentions téeerthe healthcare learning market. Sti
others offer a lower cost service alternative thay capture a portion of our potential customeebasaddition, if such competitors were to
offer a complete e-learning solution to the heatbhdndustry, our competitive position could be erdely affected. These companies may be
able to respond more quickly than us to new or ghmnopportunities, technologies, standards orazust requirements. Most of our
customer subscription agreements are for shortstevitihh no obligation to renew. The short termshefse agreements allow customers to
more easily shift to one of our competitors.
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We may be unable to effectively implement our grbwstrategy, which could have an adverse effect am business and competitive
position in the industry

Our business strategy includes increasing our nati@e and presence through sales to new custotrarsitioning existing customers,
further penetration and additional sales to exjstinstomers, introductions of new products andisesvand strategic acquisitions that
complement or enhance our business. We may ndtlbdaidentify, complete or integrate the opemgiof future acquisitions. Some of the
risks that we may encounter in implementing oumghostrategy include:

« expenses, delays and difficulties of identifyamyd integrating new products, services or acquicedpanies into our existing
organization

« diversion of manageme's attention from other business matt
* inability to generate sufficient revenue to offaetuisition or investment costs; a

« expenses of any undisclosed or potential liabdibéany acquired compar

If any of these risks are realized, our businessdcsuffer. In addition, if we finance acquisitiobyg issuing equity securities, our existing
stockholders may be diluted which could affectrirerket price of our stock. As a result, if we tailproperly evaluate and execute
acquisitions and investments, our business angpobs may be seriously harmed.

We may not be able to develop enhancements to gigtiag products and services or achieve widespraadeptance of new features or
keep pace with technological developments.

We plan to increase our revenues through saleswocastomers as well as increasing our sales dfialal courseware subscriptions and
other products and services to existing custontaus.identification of additional features, contgmpducts and services may not result in
timely development of complementary products. Iditoh, the success of certain new products andaEs may be dependent on continued
growth in our base of Internet-based customerslopton of new methodology by new customers. Begdugslthcare training continues to
change and evolve, we may be unable to accuratetligh and develop features, content and otherymsdo address the needs of the
healthcare industry. During the past two yearshawe invested in new products including Hospitadbirand Competency Compass. If these
products are not accepted by new or existing custsymve may not be able to recover the cost oftinglopment and our business will be
harmed. Continued growth of our Internet-basedasust population is dependent on our ability to oo to provide relevant products and
services in a timely manner. The success of ounbas will depend on our ability to continue pramglour products and services as well as
continued content, product and service enhanceneaiddress the needs of the healthcare industry.

Growth in courseware subscription revenues depeindpart, on our obtaining proper distribution righg from our content partners.

Most of our agreements with content providers ararfitial terms of one to three years. The confartners may choose not to renew their
agreements with us or may terminate the agreeneantgif we do not fulfill our contractual obligatis. If a significant number of our contt
providers terminate or fail to renew their agreetaavith us on acceptable terms, it could resu#t reduction in the number of courses we are
able to distribute and decreased revenues. Masirofigreements with our content partners are aseemclusive, and our competitors offer,
or could offer, training and continuing educati@mtent that is similar to or the same as oursulflighers and authors, including our current
content partners, offer information to users or@ampetitors on more favorable terms than thoseredf to us or increase our license fees
competitive position and our profit margins andgpects could be harmed. In addition, the failur@liycontent partners to deliver high-
quality content and to continuously upgrade theirtent in response to user demand and evolvinghoeae advances and trends could result
in user dissatisfaction and inhibit our abilityatiract users.

Financial Risks
Our relatively short operating history may prevems$ from forecasting our results of operations aceudely.

As a result of our short operating history, we dblmave historical financial data for a significanimber of periods upon which to forecast
quarterly revenues and results of operations. Wiewvsethat period-to-period comparisons of our agieg results prior to January 1, 2002 are
not necessarily meaningful and should not be raligsh as indicators of future performance. In addjtour operating results may vary
substantially. This variability results primarilyofn the differences in levels of sales activity #melrelated revenue recognition for our var
products and services. The actual effect of thasmifs on the price of our stock, however, willdificult to assess due to our short operating
history. In one or more future quarters, our resaftoperations may fall below historical resultdhe expectations of securities analysts and
investors, and the trading price of our commonlistoay decline.
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We expect net losses in the future and acceptabtdifbility results may not materialize.

In 2003, we had a net loss of approximately $3Miani At December 31, 2003, our accumulated defics $68.9 million. We expect
continued net losses during 2004. There is no assarwhether and, if so, when we will become paibfd.

The timing of our revenue recognition from salestadgty is dependent upon achievement of certain etge and our inability to accurately
predict them will harm our operating result:

Our ability to record revenues is dependent upeersd factors including the transfer of customegesfic information such as unique
subscriber IDs, which are required for us to impatcustomers on our Internet-based learning platfé.ccordingly, if customers do not
provide us with the specified information in a tignenanner, our ability to recognize revenues wdldelayed, which could adversely impact
our operating results. In addition, completion asdeptance by our customers of developed content@rseware must be achieved, and
utilization of courseware is required in connectigth subscription Internet-based learning prodiactd commercial support arrangements.

A significant portion of our revenue is generatetbin a relatively small number of customel

We provide our Internet-based training and edunat&rvices to HCA Information Technology & Serviceg. (HCA) pursuant to an
agreement that expires in October 2005. During 2@@3derived approximately 15%, or $2.7 million,cofr net revenues from HCA. HCA
has the right to terminate this agreement if wetéadeliver the required services under this agrea on a timely basis. We also derive a
significant portion of our revenues from a relayvemall number of customers. A termination of agreement with HCA or several of our
other significant customers would have a matedakase effect on our business as well as our pldisecure other large customers for the
services of our Internet-based HLC product.

Because we recognize revenue from subscriptionsdior products and services over the term of the suiiption period, downturns o
upturns in sales may not be immediately reflectacbur operating results.

We recognize a large portion of our revenue frost@mers monthly over the terms of their subscriptigreements, which are typically one
to three years, although terms can range fromtkessone or up to five years. As a result, mucthefrevenue we report in each quarter is
deferred revenue from subscription agreementseashiato during previous quarters. Consequenthediie in new or renewed subscriptions
in any one quarter will not necessarily be fullfleeted in the revenue in that quarter and willategely affect our revenue in future quarters.
In addition, we may be unable to adjust our casicstire to reflect these reduced revenues. Accglylithe effect of significant downturns in
sales and market acceptance of our products anmgegmay not be fully reflected in our resultoperations until future periods. Convers
our subscription model also makes it difficult tce to rapidly increase our revenue through additisales in any period, as revenue from
customers must be recognized over the applicatblscsiption term.

We may not be able to meet our strategic busindgeciives unless we obtain additional financing, ish may not be available to us on
favorable terms or at all

The net proceeds of our initial public offering,|BO, and the preceding private offerings of ounomn and preferred stock, together with
our current cash reserves, are expected to beisuiftfito meet our cash requirements through at B. However, we may need to raise
additional funds in order to:

» develop new, or enhance existing, services or s
 respond to competitive pressur

« finance working capital requiremen

 sustain content and development relationship

* acquire complementary businesses, technology, ebatgroducts

At December 31, 2003, we had approximately $18l0amiin cash, cash equivalents, restricted casigstments in marketable securities and
related interest receivable. We have commitmenpayoapproximately $340,000 in 2004 related toateragreements with various content
partners and other strategic agreements. We etpéautur approximately $2.0 million of capital exmitures during 2004 to support our
business. We expect net operating losses to cantimough at least 2004. We cannot assure yowtithtional financing will be available on
terms favorable to us, or at all. If adequate fumasnot available or are not available on accéptaibms, our ability to fund expansion, take
advantage of available opportunities, develop tiaene services or products or otherwise respoodrpetitive pressures would be
significantly limited. If we raise additional fundly issuing equity or convertible debt securitibg, percentage ownership of our shareholders
will be reduced.
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Our stock price is likely to be volatile.

The market price of our common stock is likely soumlatile and could be subject to significant fliations in response to factors such as the
following, some of which are beyond our controlagerly variations in our operating results; opiagtesults that vary from the expectations
of securities analysts and investors; changespeaations as to our future financial performamtenges in market valuations of other or
service companies; future sales of our common sttokk market price and volume fluctuations; gahpolitical and economic conditions,
such as a recession or war or terrorist attacksterest rate or currency rate fluctuations; areotisk factors described in this Form 10-K.
Moreover, our stock is thinly traded, and we havelatively small public float. These factors malversely affect the market price of our
common stock. In addition, the market prices focks of many Internet related and technology congsamave historically experienced
extreme price fluctuations that appeared to beaeladionship to the operating performance of thasapanies.

Risks Related to Sales, Marketing and Competition
We expect competition to increase in the future aticould reduce our revenues, potential profits anderall market share.

The market for traditional and online training armhtinuing education services is competitive. Ragito entry on the Internet are relatively
low, and we expect competition to increase in thark. We face competitive pressures from numeastisal and potential competitors, both
online and offline, many of which have longer opiag histories, greater brand name recognitiomgdaconsumer bases and significantly
greater financial, technical and marketing resagithan we do. There is no assurance that onlifrérigpand continuing education services
provided by our existing and potential competitoit not be perceived by the healthcare commungtyaing superior to ours.

We continue to refine our pricing and our productsd services and cannot predict whether the ongoaiginges will be accepted

Over the past few years we have implemented sevbaasiges and continue to make such changes irricirgpand our product and service
offerings to increase revenue and to meet the nefealsr customers. We cannot predict whether oureat pricing and products and services,
or any ongoing refinements we make will be acceptedur existing customer base or by prospectiwtaruers. If our customers and
potential customers decide not to accept our ctimefuture pricing or product and service offesng could have a material adverse effec
our business.

We do not have an adequate history with our revemaedel to predict the rate of customer subscripti@mewals and other activity and the
impact these renewals and other activities will leaon our revenue or operating results.

Our Internet-based HLC customers have no obligataenew their subscriptions for our productsewies after the expiration of the initial
subscription period and in fact, some customerg ledected not to renew their subscription. In addjtour customers may renew at a lower
pricing or activity level. We have limited histoalcdata with respect to rates of customer subsenipenewals and expect that the number of
accounts up for renewal will increase during artdra2004, so we cannot accurately predict custaereewal rates. Our customers’ renewal
rates may decline or fluctuate as a result of abmrof factors, including their dissatisfactiontwitur service. In addition, much of our live
event activity is of a recurring and predictabléun@, however, we do not have any long term cotgrénat obligate these customers beyond
the current contract terms. If our customers doreoéw their subscriptions for our service, oh#it activity levels decline, our revenue may
decline and our business will suffer.

Our future success also depends in part on outyatulsell additional features or enhanced edgiohour service to our current customers.
This may require increasingly sophisticated andlgssiles efforts that are targeted at senior mamegt. If these efforts are not successful,
our business may suffer.

Risks Related to Operations

We may be unable to adequately develop our systpnogesses and support in a manner that will enabketo meet the demand for our
services

We have provided our online products and servioetets than five years and continue to developability to provide our courses and
education management systems on both a subscrgotitransactional basis over the Internet. Owréusuccess will depend on our ability
effectively develop the infrastructure, includindd#tional hardware and software, and implemenstices, including customer support,
necessary to meet the demand for our servicesin@bility from time to time to successfully develtye necessary systems and implement
the necessary services on a timely basis has edsulbur customers experiencing some delays errinttions in their service. Such delays or
interruptions may cause customers to become difisatiwith our service and move to competing prexsdof traditional and online training
and education services. If this happens, our reeecould be adversely affected, which would hareaterial adverse effect on our financial
condition.
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Our business operations could be significantly dipted if we lose members of, or fail to integrateyr management team.

Our future performance will be substantially depamtcbn the continued services of our management &l our ability to retain and
motivate them. The loss of the services of anyuwfaificers or senior managers could harm our lessnas we may not be able to find
suitable replacements. We do not have employmeaeeatents with any of our key personnel, other tharchief executive officer, and we
do not maintain any “key person” life insuranceigiek.

We may not be able to hire and retain a sufficiemimber of qualified employees and, as a result, way not be able to grow as we expect
or maintain the quality of our services.

Our future success will depend on our ability toaat, train, retain and motivate other highly &dltechnical, managerial, marketing and
customer support personnel. Competition for thesegmnel is intense, especially for developers, désgigners and sales personnel, and we
may be unable to successfully attract sufficiegtialified personnel. We have experienced difficityhe past hiring qualified personnel in a
timely manner for these positions. The pool of fieal technical personnel, in particular, is lindten Nashville, Tennessee, which is where
our headquarters are located. We will need to ramirihe size of our staff to support our anticipageowth, without compromising the qua

of our offerings or customer service. Our inabitilylocate, hire, integrate and retain qualifiedspanel in sufficient numbers may reduce the
quality of our services.

We must continue to upgrade our technology infrastture, both hardware and software, to effectiveheet demand for our services.

We must continue to add hardware and enhance seftwaccommodate the increased content in owrltand increased use of our Web
site. In order to make timely decisions about hamgand software enhancements, we must be abbetoadely forecast the growth in
demand for our services. This growth in demandftorservices is difficult to forecast and the ptisdraudience for our services is large. If
we are unable to increase the data storage andgsiong capacity of our systems at least as fabieagrowth in demand, our systems may
become unstable and our customers may encountgrsdet disruptions in their service. Unscheduledmone could harm our business and
also could discourage current and potential custeraed reduce future revenues.

Our network infrastructure and computer systems asodftware may fail.

An unexpected event like a power or telecommurocatifailure, fire, flood, earthquake, or other sti@phic loss at our Internet service
providers’ facilities or at our on-site data fafilcould cause the loss of critical data and preuerfrom offering our products and services.
Our business interruption insurance may not adetjuabmpensate us for losses that may occur. litiadgdwe rely on third parties to
securely store our archived data, house our Welesand network systems and connect us to thenkettevWhile our service providers have
planned for certain contingencies, the failure by af these third parties to provide these servéedisfactorily and our inability to find
suitable replacements would impair our ability teess archives and operate our systems and software

We may lose users and lose revenues if our onlieeusity measures fail.

If the security measures that we use to protecqmad information are ineffective, we may lose ss#rour services, which could reduce our
revenues. We rely on security and authenticationrtelogy licensed from third parties. With thishaology, we perform redlme credit carc
authorization and verification. We cannot preditiether these security measures could be circumddayt@ew technological developments.
In addition, our software, databases and serveyst@aulnerable to computer viruses, physical ectebnic breakns and similar disruption
We may need to spend significant resources to gragainst security breaches or to alleviate probleaused by any breaches. We cannot
assure that we can prevent all security breaches.

Risks Related to Government Regulation, Content anthtellectual Property
Government regulation may require us to change tay we do business.

The laws and regulations that govern our businkaage rapidly. The United States government angdiwernments of states and foreign
countries have attempted to regulate activitietherinternet. Evolving areas of law that are refi\ta our business include privacy law,
proposed encryption laws, content regulation atessand use tax laws and regulations. Becausésofapidly evolving and uncertain
regulatory environment, we cannot predict how tHases and regulations might affect our businesaddition, these uncertainties make it
difficult to ensure compliance with the laws andukations governing the Internet. These laws agdletions could harm us by subjecting us
to liability or forcing us to change how we do mesis. See “Business — Government Regulation ditieenet and the Healthcare Industry”
for a more complete discussion of these laws agdlagons.
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Any reduction or change in the regulation of contiling education and training in the healthcare indtry may adversely affect ot
business.

Our business model is dependent in part on reqtrieéting and continuing education for healthcanagssionals and other healthcare
workers resulting from regulations of state anddfabdagencies, state licensing boards and profeslsimganizations. Any change in these
regulations that reduce the requirements for cairtgneducation and training for the healthcare #tiducould harm our business.

In addition, our business with pharmaceutical amdlical device manufacturers is predicated on ollityato maintain accreditation status
with organizations such as the Accreditation ColulociContinuing Medical Education (ACCME), Ameritdurses Credentialing Center
(ANCC), American Council for Pharmaceutical Eduocat{ACPE) and others. The failure to maintain statsian accredited provider could
result in a detrimental effect on our business.

New regulations may reduce our business activityhapharmaceutical and medical device custome

In April 2003, the Office of Inspector General (QI&f the Department of Health and Human Servicesad “OlIG Compliance Program
Guidance for Pharmaceutical Manufacturers.” Thislgice identifies three areas of risks for pharmtical and medical device companies
and recommends certain best practices to be indluda compliance plan designed to avoid the ridlederal healthcare program abuse. The
guidance highlighted a number of arrangementstifre¢ the potential to trigger fraud and abuse timta, including educational grants. The
Company follows the rules and guidelines providedie ACCME, ANCC and other continuing educationraditing bodies to ensure that
continuing education programming is free from cormuia bias and consistent with the OIG guidancee Tiajority of the Company’s
accredited continuing education programming is &thdy educational grants from our pharmaceuticdlraadical device customers. Thert
no assurance that our pharmaceutical and medivaledeustomers will continue to provide educatiagraints consistent with past practices.
To the extent that our customers curtail or restmgctheir business practices, it could have a ni@i@dverse impact on the Company’s
revenues, results of operations, and financialtjposi

We may be liable to third parties for content thatavailable from our online library.

We may be liable to third parties for the contendur online library if the text, graphics, softwaor other content in our library violates
copyright, trademark, or other intellectual progeights, our content partners violate their coctimal obligations to others by providing
content to our library or the content does not oomfto accepted standards of care in the healtlprafession. We may also be liable for
anything that is accessible from our Web site thholinks to other Web sites. We attempt to minintlzese types of liabilities by requiring
representations and warranties relating to ouresdrartners’ ownership of the rights to distribasewell as the accuracy of their content. We
also take necessary measures to review this conteselves. Although our agreements with our cdntantners contain provisions providing
for indemnification by the content providers in #neent of inaccurate content, we cannot assuretivatontent partners will have the
financial resources to meet this obligation. Alldgdjability could harm our business by damaging i@putation, requiring us to incur legal
costs in defense, exposing us to awards of dansagksosts and diverting management’s attention dway our business. See “Business -
Intellectual Property and Other Proprietary Righits”a more complete discussion of the potentitdat$ of this liability on our business.

Protection of certain proprietary trademarks and ah@in names may be difficult and costl

Despite protection of certain proprietary tradensaakd domain names, a third-party could, withotl@ization, copy or otherwise
appropriate our content or other information froun database. Our agreements with employees, canssiind others who participate in
development activities could be breached. We mayhaee adequate remedies for any breach, andams secrets may otherwise become
known or independently developed by competitoraddition, the laws of some foreign countries dbprotect our proprietary rights to the
same extent as the laws of the United States, fiactige copyright, trademark and trade secretguiddn may not be available in those
jurisdictions. We currently hold several domain eaniThe legal status of intellectual property anltiternet is currently subject to varic
uncertainties. The current system for registeradigcating and managing domain names has beemubjecs of litigation and proposed
regulatory reform. Additionally, legislative promds have been made by the federal government thaldvafford broad protection to owners
of databases of information, such as stock qudtas.protection of databases already exists irEtlm@pean Union. There have been
substantial amounts of litigation in the computed anline industries regarding intellectual propertsets. Third-parties may claim
infringement by us with respect to current and feifproducts, trademarks or other proprietary rigitsl we may counterclaim against such
parties in such actions. Any such claims or cowtaéns could be time-consuming, result in costigéition, divert management’s attention,
cause product release delays, require us to redesigproducts or require us to enter into royaltyicensing agreements, any of which could
have a material adverse effect upon our businessdial condition and operating results. Such itgyend licensing agreements may not be
available on terms acceptable to us, if at all.
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We may be unable to protect our intellectual properand we may be liable for infringing the inteldéual property rights of others.

Our business could be harmed if unauthorized sainiieinge upon or misappropriate our proprietargtems, content, services or other
information. Our efforts to protect our intelleckpaoperty through copyright, trademarks and ottartrols may not be adequate. In the
future, litigation may be necessary to enforceintellectual property rights or to determine thdidity and scope of the proprietary rights of
others, which could be time consuming and costiiellectual property infringement claims could bada against us as the number of our
competitors grows. These claims, even if not madte, could be expensive and divert our attenfiiom operating our company. In additic

if we become liable to third parties for infringittgeir intellectual property rights, we could bguied to pay a substantial damage award and
develop comparable non-infringing intellectual pedy, to obtain a license or to cease providingcthrtent or services that contain the
infringing intellectual property. We may be unatdedevelop non-infringing intellectual propertyaistain a license on commercially
reasonable terms, if at all.

Item 2. Properties

Our principal office is located in Nashville, Tessee. Our lease for approximately 31,000 squateafebis location expires in April 2005.
The lease provides for two five-year renewal opidRent at this location is approximately $24,060mponth through February 2004 and
approximately $22,000 per month from March 2004digh April 2005.

We are leasing approximately 8,000 square feeffmieospace in Denver, Colorado. The lease expirddarch 2010 and has monthly rent of
approximately $9,000.

We are leasing approximately 6,000 square feeffmieospace in Dallas, Texas. The lease expirdaiuary 2007 and has monthly rent of
approximately $8,000. We are currently subleadig affice space at the rate of approximately $8,06r month to a third party for the
remaining term of the lease.

We are leasing approximately 3,700 square feeffmieospace in Raleigh, North Carolina. The leaggres in September 2004 and has
monthly rent of approximately $4,400 through JuBeZ004 and approximately $4,500 from July 1, 280dugh September 30, 2004.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

None.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
None.

15




Table of Contents
PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity and RelatedoSkholder Matters

The following table sets forth, for the periodsigaded, the high and low sales prices per shaceioEommon stock as reported on the
NASDAQ National Market under the ticker symbol HST

High Low
2003
First Quartel $1.8¢€ $1.0C
Second Quarte 2.6¢ 1.0C
Third Quartel 3.8t 2.1t
Fourth Quarte 3.1C 2.5(C
2002
First Quartel $1.4z2 $1.11
Second Quarte 1.9C 1.07
Third Quartel 1.41 0.7¢
Fourth Quarte 1.41 0.9¢

On March 8, 2004, there were 218 registered holdedsapproximately 2,022 beneficial holders of cmammon stock. Because many of such
shares are held by brokers and other institutionsahalf of shareholders, we are unable to estithatéotal number of shareholders
represented by these record holders.

On February 19, 2004, options to purchase up tg08D0shares at an exercise price of $2.69 werdagtda employees. Options to purchase
an additional 40,000 shares at an exercise pri§2 9 were also granted, but are subject to cgaticies related to 2004 financial results.
These options vest annually over four years an@t@xgight years after issuance.

DIVIDEND POLICY

We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsiocommon stock, and we do not anticipate pagash dividends in the foreseeable
future. We intend to retain earnings to financeekpansion of our operations.

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES
There have been no sales of unregistered secusities December 31, 2002.
USE OF PROCEEDS

On April 10, 2000 our Registration Statement omir&-1 (File No. 333-88939) was declared effectiyehe Securities and Exchange
Commission. Pursuant to the Registration Statermentegistered and sold 5,275,000 shares of constonhk at a price of $9.00 per share.
The managing underwriter was FleetBoston Rober&ephens, Inc. The aggregate price of the amoterteaf and sold was $47,475,000. In
connection with the issuance and distribution efsbcurities registered, we paid $3,323,250 relatethderwriting discounts and
commissions and approximately $2,000,000 of otkpesses.

The net offering proceeds to the Company after denly the total expenses noted above were appraeiyn®42,200,000. From the effective
date of the Registration Statement through Decer®bg2003, we have used approximately $33,200,08@emet offering proceeds to fund
general operating expenses, acquisitions and otheking capital needs.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected statements of operations data fahtke-year period ended December 31, 2003 andathede sheet data as of December 31,
2003 and 2002 are derived from our financial steteisithat have been audited by Ernst & Young LW jmdependent auditors, and are
included elsewhere in this report. You should réedfollowing selected financial data in conjunatiwith our consolidated financial
statements and the notes to those statements amgbtddment’s Discussion and Analysis of Financialdtin and Results of Operations”
located elsewhere in this report.

HealthStream acquired seven companies between&@DR001. As a result of these acquisitions, tmeialresults presented below are not
comparable. Revenues may be subject to fluctuatiertiscussed further in “Management’s Discussi@hAnalysis of
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Financial Condition and Results of Operations” tedaelsewhere in this report. During 2002, we agld[8FAS No. 142 “Goodwill and
Intangible Assets,” which eliminated the amortiaatof goodwill and indefinite lived intangible atsdn accordance with the provisions of
SFAS No. 142, we recorded a transitional goodwilpairment charge of $5.0 million, in our HCO busimenit, as a cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle as of January 12268 a result of this accounting change, the almasalts presented below are not
comparable. See Note 6 to the Consolidated Finb8tagements for details. The operating resultsafor single year are not necessarily
indicative of the results to be expected in therfeit

Year Ended December 31
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

(In thousands, except per share data)

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA

Revenues, ne¢ $18,19¢ $15,79C $13,500 $ 9,65: $2,56¢

Operating costs and expens
Cost of revenue 6,26¢ 5,97( 5,77 4,357 2,13¢
Product developmel 3,241 4,67¢ 5,041 5,63¢ 2,037
Sales, marketing, general and administrative e>qs 9,431 12,83t 13,01¢ 15,42¢ 2,501
Depreciation and amortizatic 3,04¢ 4,39¢ 9,93¢ 6,901 452
Office consolidation charg — 164 401 — —
Impairment of lon-lived asset: — 10t 712 — —
Total operating costs and expen 21,99« 28,14¢ 34,88: 32,32¢ 7,12¢
Loss from operation (3,799 (12,359 (21,379 (22,679 (4,560
Other income (expens 387 717 1,80 2,38¢ 104
Net loss, before cumulative effect of a changecitoanting principle (3,412 (11,647 (19,57¢) (20,285 (4,456
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting pritec — (5,000 — — —
Net loss $(3,412) $(16,64)  $(19,57¢  $(20,28%) $(4,45¢)
I I I | |

Net loss per sha— basic and diluted, before cumulative effect ohange in
accounting principle $ (017 $ (O5) $ (09 $ (1.29 $ (119

Cumulative effect of a change in accounting pritec (0.25) — —
Net loss per shar- basic and dilute $ 01797 $ (08) $ (09 $ (129 $ (119
| I I L] |
Weighted average shares of common stock outsta~ basic and dilute: 20,38t 20,26: 19,92 15,78¢ 3,751
I I I | |
At December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)
BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Cash and cash equivalel $14,22( $ 4,07( $ 4,74 $ 19,83. $13,63C
Investments in marketable securit-short and long terr 2,95¢ 15,15 21,41( 20,341 —
Working capital 16,31¢ 14,91: 17,94¢ 26,43¢ 11,46¢
Total asset 28,39¢ 32,91 49,24 70,45: 17,45t
Deferred revenu 3,05¢ 3,34¢ 3,27¢ 2,76¢ 791
Long-term debt and capital leases, net of current po 1 41 11¢ 21€ 18¢€
Shareholder equity 22,55¢ 25,89¢ 42 54 62,017 14,19(

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of the financial conditiand results of operations of HealthStream shoeltelhd in conjunction with “Selected
Financial Data” and HealthStream’s ConsolidatedRaial Statements and related notes thereto indlatbiewhere in this report. This
discussion contains forward-looking statementsithailve risks and uncertainties. HealthStreamtsiacresults may differ significantly from
the results discussed and those anticipated i tfloesard-looking statements as a result of mangofs, including but not limited to, those
described under “Risk Factors” and elsewhere m port.

The following discussion provides an overview of bistory together with a summary of our criticataunting policies and estimates. Our
critical accounting policies and estimates inclugdenue recognition, product development costsraladed capitalization, impairment of
goodwill, intangible and other lo-lived assets and the allowance for doubtful accm!



OVERVIEW

HealthStream was incorporated in 1990 and begaketiag its Internet-based solutions in March 1988 Company focuses on being a
facilitator of training tools for entities in thes&lthcare industry. Revenues from the healthcayanirations business unit (HCO) are derived
from the following categories: provision of sengdfrough our Internet-based learning productsissware subscriptions, maintenance and
support of installed learning management produatsaavariety of online products. Revenues fromph@&maceutical and medical device
company business unit (PMD) are derived from liverg development, content development, Web castteyand other educational and
training services.

To date, we have incurred substantial costs toldpwaur technologies, create, license and acquireontent, build brand awareness, dev
our infrastructure and expand our business, and fiavto achieve sufficient revenues to generatet profit or positive operating cash flows.
As a result, we have incurred operating lossesah éiscal quarter since 1994. We expect operdtisses to continue through 2004 as we
continue to expand our business and develop ahdesglproducts and services. These costs could have
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material adverse effect on our future financialditian or operating results. We believe that petiogheriod comparisons of our financial
results prior to January 1, 2002 are not necegsarhningful, and you should not rely upon themaraindication of our future performance.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES
Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenues from our Internet-based ileguproducts and courseware subscriptions to hesithworkers through healthcare
organizations based on a per person subscriptisis,baith fees ranging from less than $1 to moanth6 per month. These fees are based or
the size of the facilities’ employee user populaiimd the service offerings to which they subsci@antracts for our Internet-based learning
products generally range from $5,000 to approxity&ié00,000 based on the number of users, produntservices included and the

duration of the contract. Revenue is recognizeabigtover the service period of the underlying cacit

The Company offers training services for clientéailitate integration of this technology. Feesti@ining are based on the time and efforts
of the personnel involved. Training revenues ameegaly recognized upon completion of training sees.

We also have arrangements that provide for commlesapport of online courseware. Such revenuecsgrized based on an estimate of
usage ratably over the term unless usage varigstfis estimate.

Revenues from installed learning management predaret primarily associated with ongoing maintenaammktechnical support services,
typically based on a percentage of the originalremh amount and recognized as revenue over thedéthe service period, generally one
year. Until early 2002, we also had revenues rdlaiesales of installed learning management pragdudtich were recognized based uj
shipment or installation of the software. Theses#&pically ranged from $20,000 to $200,000 basethe number of users.

We have and expect to continue to transition custerfrom our existing installed learning managenpeatiucts to our Internet-based
learning products. We expect that revenues reguiitom these transition customers will remain corapée or increase when compared to the
annual maintenance and technical support servieesdue to sales of additional services and onbeseware.

We recognize revenue from live event developmenices and content development services basedeopditentage of completion method
using labor hours or similar event milestones. Théthodology requires ongoing estimates regardiaddtal expenses or significant
milestones associated with the project as welles®gic estimates of the progress with respecbtopetion of such projects. Event
registration services revenue is based on theactett services including the expected registraehdance. Revenues for these services are
recognized upon completion of the related everakesSof products and services to pharmaceuticahedical device companies can be
subject to seasonal factors as a result of drugpeadiict introductions, meeting and conferencesdatel budget cycles for such companies.

Revenues associated with online training are rezedrover the term of the subscription period cgrahe historical usage period, if usage
typically differs from the subscription period. Alther service revenues, including Web cast evengsrecognized as the related services are
performed or products are delivered.

We expect to continue to generate revenues by tiagkeur Internet-based products and services adtteare workers through healthcare
organizations. We expect that the portion of oueneies related to services provided via our Intebbased learning products will increase.
Specifically, we will seek to generate revenuesififtealthcare workers by marketing to their emplsy®rsponsoring organizations. The
transaction fees for courseware resulting from tiésketing is typically paid by either the emplogersponsoring organization.

Product Development Costs

Product development costs primarily include oueiinal costs to maintain and internally developuesg and convert content for our Internet-
based learning and installed learning managemeuupts. Once technological feasibility is achiewed,capitalize the cost of features or
content developed by third parties where the lfgeetancy is greater than one year and the antédpzash flows from such content is
expected to exceed the related cost of the cordeming 2003 and 2002, we capitalized approxima$d@0,000 and $100,000, respectively,
related to third party content development. Sucbuamts are included in the accompanying consolidbsdgince sheets under the caption
“prepaid development fees.” We amortize contentfeature development over the expected life, widaienerally one to three years.
Product development and content development doatdhtive been capitalized are subject to a periogiairment review in accordance with
our policy.

Product development costs also include our systeam, which manages our efforts associated witdymiodevelopment and maintenance,
database management, quality assurance and sedinigyteam is responsible for new internal prodiestelopment
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such as HospitalDirect, integration of external @raducts such as Competency Compass and contamiethcements and regularly
scheduled maintenance (called ServicePacks) tplatiorm.

We account for Web site development costs in acsarel with EITF Issue No. 00-2 “Accounting for Wake®Pevelopment Costs,” which
provides guidance on when to capitalize versusmesgeosts incurred to develop a Web site. We degiteosts incurred between the point of
establishing technological feasibility and geneetéase when such costs are material.

In connection with product development, our sigrifit estimates involve the assessment of techralbigiasibility for new products, as well
as the expected useful life of costs associated métv products and content. Once capitalized, mtoglud content development costs are
subject to the policies and estimates describealhbsdgarding goodwill, intangible and other longelil assets.

Goodwill, intangibles and other long-lived assets

We account for goodwill and intangibles and otloergHived assets in accordance with Statementradrtéial Accounting Standards (SFAS)
No. 142 ,“Goodwill and Intangible Assets,” and SFAS No. 144¢counting for the Impairment or Disposal of Lehiyed Assets.” We
measure for impairment at the reporting unit laxghg a discounted cash flow model to determinestiienated fair value of the reporting
units. Our discounted cash flow model containsifiant assumptions and accounting estimates atisabunt rates, future cash flows and
terminal values that could materially affect ouemgiing results or financial position if they weéoechange significantly in the future. We
perform our goodwill impairment test whenever egamtchanges in facts or circumstances indicateintiyzairment may exist and also during
the fourth quarter each year.

Through December 31, 2001, we accounted for gobdwd intangible assets in accordance with Accognirinciples Board Opinion

No. 17,“Intangible Assets” and other long-lived assetadeordance with SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for thhirment of Long-Lived
Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed (Statement 121). In accordance with Statement W2lreviewed internal and external
factors to determine whether events or changeacits and circumstances were present and indicatiae impairment of long-lived assets.
This review included estimates of future cash floelated to such long-lived assets.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We estimate the allowance for doubtful accountagusi specific identification method. Managementaleation includes reviewing past due
accounts on a case-by case basis, and determitiether an account should be reserved, based dadiseand circumstances surrounding
each potentially uncollectible account. An allowars also maintained for accounts not specificalgntified that may become uncollectible
in the future. Uncollectible accounts are writtdhio the period management believes it has exteglsvery opportunity to collect payment
from the customer. Bad debt expense is recordedh whents or circumstances indicate an additioha@vaince is necessary based on our
specific identification approach.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Revenues and Expense Components
The following descriptions of the components ofenewes and expenses apply to the comparison ofseddperations.

RevenuesRevenues for our HCO business unit currently comgithe provision of services through our Interbased learning products,
including authoring tools, maintenance and supgentices for our installed learning management ycts] competency tools and courseware
subscriptions. Revenues for our PMD business umisist of live event development, custom onlineeltggment, web cast events, live
educational activities for nurses and techniciarglacted within healthcare organizations and ekfimbr continuing education activities at
association meetings.

Cost of Revenue€ost of revenues consists primarily of salariesemgloyee benefits, employee travel and lodgingereds, contract labo
hosting costs, and other direct expenses assodidtiedevenues as well as royalties paid by usottent providers based on a percentage of
revenues. Personnel costs within cost of reventgeassociated with individuals that provide sersjdendle customer support calls or
inquiries, manage our web sites and content degli@ad provide training or implementation services.

Product DevelopmenProduct development expenses consist primarihalafiies and employee benefits, third-party condequisition costs,
costs associated with the development of contesheapenditures associated with maintaining, devetppnd operating our training delivery
and administration platforms. In addition, proddetelopment expenses are associated with the geweld of new products and feature
enhancements. Personnel costs within product devedot include our systems team, product managedsother personnel associated with
content and product development.
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Sales and Marketing Expens&ales and marketing expenses consist primarilglafies, commissions and employee benefits, employe
travel and lodging, advertising, promotions, ardtszl marketing costs. Personnel costs within salesmarketing include our sales and
marketing team as well as our account managemeupgr

Other General and Administrative Expengether general and administrative expenses consisaply of salaries and employee benefits,
employee travel and lodging, facility costs, offexgenses and fees for professional services. fegkoosts within general and
administrative expenses include individuals assediwith normal corporate functions (accountingale human resources, administrative
executive management) as well as accreditatiorepsadnals.

Depreciation and AmortizatioiDepreciation and amortization consist of fixed agspreciation, amortization of intangibles congadeto
have definite lives, and amortization of conteicgmse fees, and royalties paid to content prositleat are of a fixed nature.

Other Income/Expens&he primary component of other income is interesbime related to interest earned on cash, cashiaenis and
investments in marketable securities. The primammonent of other expense is interest expensetetatcapital leases.

2003 Compared to 2002

RevenuesRevenues increased approximately $2.4 million,52%, to $18.2 million for 2003 from approximat&¥5.8 million for 2002.
Revenues for 2003 consisted of $12.0 million for¢i&nd $6.2 million for PMD. In 2002, revenues cetedd of $9.8 million for HCO and
$6.0 million for PMD. HCO revenue increases oved2@esulted from growth in our core product, thiednet-based HLC and sales of aatd-
courseware subscriptions, while revenues assocmtacur installed learning management productdided as anticipated. PMD revenues
increased slightly over 2002, primarily resultimgrh sales of content development services.

The Internet-based HLC subscriber base increasa@amately 33% during 2003, from approximately 38 fully implemented
subscribers at the end of 2002, to approximate;aQ0 fully implemented subscribers at the end 2008 increase contributed to a

$2.2 million increase in HCO revenues, while cowae subscription revenues increased $1.1 millimng 2003, primarily associated with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountabifigst of 1996 (HIPAA). Revenues from maintenance aapport fees associated with our
installed learning management products declinedxpected, by $800,000. This decline is consistéthit our planned transition of these
customers to our Internet-based learning platfokfa.expect revenues from our installed learning rgameent products to continue to decline
during 2004, as we continue to focus on transitigrihe customers using these products to our letdrased learning platform. We expect
revenues from our Internet-based HLC, our Compgt€mmpass product and add-on courseware to incckasey 2004.

The PMD unit experienced moderate revenue growtingd2003. Revenues from the sales of our conteméldpment services increased
during 2003. This revenue growth was partially etfisy moderate declines in live event revenuepamrelated to the pharmaceutical and
medical device industry’s cautious response to damge guidelines issued by the OIG in April 2008t relate to the funding of educational
programs. We expect that revenues from our liveeservices and content development services malease during 2004. We also expect
HospitalDirectTM, which was launched during thedhjuarter of 2003, to begin generating revenuemng2004.

During 2003, 57.2% of revenues were derived fromloternet-based learning products, 22.5% from éivent development services, 11.5%
from content development services and 8.8% fromirmialled learning management products. During22@8.3% of revenues related to our
Internet-based learning products, 27.1% relatdidecevent services, 15.3% related to our instakeaining management products, and 12.3%
related to content development services.

Cost of Revenue€ost of revenues increased approximately $300®08.0%, to $6.3 million for 2003 from approximat&l6.0 million for
2002. During 2003, we experienced increased r@gftom sales of courseware subscriptions, prign&tiPAA. Contract labor expenses also
increased resulting from outsourcing content dgualkent services. These increases were partiallgtffig lower personnel expense and
travel, due to reductions in personnel. Cost oénexes as a percentage of revenues decreased 8% 8% 2002 to 34.4% for 2003. This
decrease as a percentage of revenues resultedrftosased revenues and the change in revenue cemigatiscussed above.

Cost of revenues for HCO increased approximate0¥®0, or 13.8%, to $2.2 million for 2003 from $illion for 2002, and approximat
18.2% and 19.7% of revenues for 2003 and 2002¢eotisely. Royalties increased during 2003, reldtesiales of add-on courseware,
primarily HIPAA. This increase was partially offdef a reduction in personnel related expenses. ¥ect royalties to increase during 2004,
but to remain comparable or decline slightly agecentage of revenue. Cost of revenues for PMDedsed $100,000, or 3.2%, from

$3.7 million in 2002 to $3.6 million in 2003, andmoximated 57.8% and 61.1% of revenues for 20@32802, respectively. This decline is
primarily related to personnel expense and traaglictions, and was partially offset by increasettremt labor costs associated with content
development services. Cost of revenues for thdacatkd corporate functions increased

20




Table of Contents

approximately $200,000 from $300,000 in 2002 to®600 in 2003, as a result of additional conteppsut personnel who handle loading,
maintenance, versioning and support of contentwnrdernet-based learning platform.

Gross Margin.Gross margin (which we define as revenues lessaégeivenues divided by revenues) improved to 65d6#tng 2003 from
62.2% during 2002. This improvement is a resuihofeased revenues as well as the change in reveixué&ross margins for HCO were
81.8% and 80.3% for 2003 and 2002, respectivelgs&margins for PMD were 42.2% and 38.9% for 20082002, respectively. Gross
margins for PMD are lower than HCO due to the higiuests associated with delivering live event aowitent development services, and such
costs can vary from project to project. We expecsg margins for both HCO and PMD to decreasetbfigluring 2004 as we increase our

focus on delivering new products to the markethsas Competency Compa8%$ (HCO) and HospitalDirect™ (PMD).

Product developmenProduct development expenses decreased approxynidtd million, or 30.6%, from $4.7 million for 2200

$3.3 million for 2003, and approximated 17.8% aB8db2 of revenues for 2003 and 2002, respectiveiys feduction primarily resulted from
lower personnel expenses associated with the ddasioh of our product development efforts. Prodi¢elopment efforts during 2003 were
focused on launching products, feature enhancemamiscontent that build upon our core producttiernet-based HLC. During 2003, we
launched several new products to meet this objegicluding HospitalDirectM , Competency Compas¥ , and an authoring solution for
the Internet-based HLC. We also have several gigetucts under development, including HealthStréxpress™, a streamlined, economy-
scaled version of our platform, which was launctiedng January 2004.

Product development expenses for HCO decreasedxapyately $1.3 million, or 40.4%, from $3.2 millidar 2002 to $1.9 million for 2003,
and approximated 16.1% and 33.2% of revenues i 26d 2002, respectively. The decrease is primas$pciated with the consolidation of
product development efforts. During 2003, the HG@ launched Competency Compa¥sand an authoring solution for the Internet-based
HLC. Product development expenses for PMD increapgdoximately $200,000, or 37.2%, to $900,00@f03 from $700,000 for 2002,
and approximated 14.6% and 10.9% of revenues 08 20id 2002, respectively. The increase is attliletto costs associated with the
development of HospitalDire¢t as well as development and maintenance of otheeabproducts for medical industry representatifém
unallocated corporate portion of our product depmient expenses decreased approximately $400,0@8, &, from $800,000 in 2002 to
$400,000 in 2003. This was a result of personrdtigBons and a shift to projects that benefit tlgfprms for both the HCO and PMD
business unit products.

Sales and Marketing Expens&siles and marketing expenses, including persomsésd,cdecreased approximately $2.0 million, or #).8
from $6.4 million for 2002 to $4.4 million for 200and approximated 24.4% and 40.7% of revenue3d08 and 2002, respectively. This
decrease primarily resulted from lower commissioaductions in personnel related expenses andl travet reduced advertising and
marketing spending. Commission expense is lowerrasult of changes in commission plans for 20@Blewer activity levels during the fii
half of the year. Personnel expense and relatedltcecreases are a result of reductions in peedoAdvertising and marketing spending
levels were lower in 2003 due to changes in mangetiitiatives.

Sales and marketing expense for HCO decreasedxaptely $1.8 million from $4.9 million for 2002 3.1 million for 2003, and
approximated 35.3% and 49.8% of revenues for 20032802, respectively. This decrease is attribet&blower commissions of $900,000,
personnel expense and travel reductions of $50GA00ower advertising and marketing expenses 00 &®0. Commissions decreased as a
result of changes in the commission plan for 2088 lawer headcount. Personnel expense and trawébaer due to fewer sales and
marketing personnel. Advertising and marketing esgedecreases, excluding personnel, were attrileutalchanges in marketing initiatives.
Sales and marketing expense for PMD decreasedxpyately $400,000 from $1.5 million for 2002 to $million for 2003, and
approximated 18.0% and 24.7% of revenues for 20032802, respectively. The decrease resulted fooverd personnel expenses and travel
of $200,000 due to lower headcount, and lower ca@simins of $100,000 due to lower sales personnetedated sales activity. Advertising
and marketing expense, excluding personnel, desie®i00,000, primarily due to changes in markeitit@atives. Sales and marketing
expense for our unallocated corporate functionseawed approximately $100,000 during 2003.

Depreciation and AmortizatioiDepreciation and amortization decreased approxigndfe3 million, or 30.7%, from $4.4 million in 2@Go
$3.1 million in 2003. Amortization decreased $1.illiom due to certain intangible assets and prepaittent development becoming fully
amortized. Depreciation decreased $200,000 dumnterlfixed asset purchases over the past two ysangell as assets becoming fully
depreciated.

Other General and Administrativ®ther general and administrative expenses decreggedximately $1.4 million, or 22.2%, from
$6.4 million for 2002 to $5.0 million for 2003, aagproximated 27.4% and 40.6% of revenues for 20@132002, respectively. The decrease
is a result of lower personnel expenses and copozerating expenses as a result of consolidatingprate functions.

Other general and administrative expenses for HE@ehsed approximately $900,000, from $1.1 milfmm002 to $200,000 for 2003, and
approximated 1.5% and 11.6% of revenues for 2002802, respectively. The decrease for HCO restifted a redesignation of certain
personnel to corporate, headcount reductions, Hret expense reductions. Other general and admaitiig expenses for PMD decreased
approximately $700,000, from $900,000 for 200226¢k000 for 2003, and approximated 3.6% and
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15.7% of revenues for 2003 and 2002, respectivdig. decrease for PMD resulted from headcount rezhscind a redesignation of certain
personnel and operating expenses to corporater @éneral and administrative expenses for the ocatéd corporate functions increased
approximately $200,000 primarily as a result of tbéesignation of executive management personmetearain operating expenses to
corporate. This realignment resulted in an additiéii.1 million of unallocated expenses, which wéset by headcount and operating
expense reductions of $900,000 resulting from cladesting our corporate functions. The office condation charge and impairment losses
recognized in 2002 did not recur in 2003.

Other Income/Expens@ther income/expense decreased approximately $30000 46.1%, from $700,000 for 2002 to $400,0002f203.
The decrease resulted from a reduction of inténesime from investments in marketable securitiesdure to lower invested balances and
lower yield rates.

Net LossNet loss decreased approximately $13.2 milliory%©6%, from a loss of $16.6 million for 2002 tooad of $3.4 million for 2003.
Net loss before the cumulative effect of a chamgacicounting principle of $5.0 million, decreas&2$million, or 70.7%, from a loss
$11.6 million for 2002 to a loss of $3.4 millionrf2003, due to the factors mentioned above.

2002 Compared to 2001

RevenuesRevenues increased approximately $2.3 million,700%, to $15.8 million for 2002 from approximat&¥3.5 million for 2001.
Revenues for 2002 consisted of $9.8 million for H&®@ $6.0 million for PMD. In 2001, revenues cotesisof $8.0 million for HCO and
$5.5 million for PMD. The increase in HCO revenoesr 2001 related primarily to growth in our Intetfbased learning network, increased
courseware subscriptions and the cancellationvedirmant to purchase our common stock previouslg bglHCA, which eliminated the
amortization of the warrant value previously redagd as a reduction of revenues for the first mmaths of 2001. HCO revenues through
September 2001 are presented net of warrant expégproximately $1.5 million. PMD revenue increasesulted primarily from live eve
services.

During 2002 the components of HCO revenues changetbared to 2001, as subscription revenues froninbeimet-based learning products
increased by approximately $2.3 million, while ehation of the warrant resulted in another $1.5iarilof the increase. The increase in
subscription revenues from our Internet-based iegrproducts is attributable to the growth in ootieknet-based learning network, which was
comprised of approximately 580,000 activated subecs as of December 31, 2002, and as a resultliveding additional content to those
subscribers. These HCO revenue increases weré bffsieclines in revenues of approximately $2.Qiamlfrom sales of licenses and
maintenance fees associated with our installedilegmrmanagement products.

During 2002, PMD revenues increased over 2001 pifyndue to approximately $900,000 of growth indievent services. These increases
were partially offset by declines of $400,000 imtmt development services. The increase in lienedevelopment and coordination
services resulted from both providing additional/ges to existing customers as well as sales waestomers.

During 2002, 45.3% of revenues related to our h@tbased learning products, 27.1% related todixant development services, 13.3%
related to maintenance and support fees for otalled learning management products, 12.3% rel@medntent development services, and
2.0% related to our installed learning managemsesduyect licensing fees. During 2001, 26.7% of revenielated to live event services, 19
related to maintenance and support fees for otalled learning management products, 15.5% relmtedntent development services, 14.9%
related to our Interndiased learning products, 12.7% related to othas#etions and product sales (including commeraigpsrt) and 10.9¢
related to our installed learning management prolitensing fees.

Cost of Revenue€ost of revenues increased approximately $200@08.4%, to $6.0 million for 2002 from approximat&5.8 million for
2001. The increase resulted primarily from addaiorosts associated with increased expenses retatisg event services, such as personnel
expenses, travel and contract labor. Cost of res®ag a percentage of revenues decreased from 4. 2801 to 37.8% for 2002. This
decrease as a percentage of revenues resultedHeochange in revenue composition discussed above.

Cost of revenues for HCO decreased approximated® $00 from $2.6 million in 2001 to $1.9 million 2002, and approximated 19.7% and
33.3% of revenues for 2002 and 2001, respectivédig.decrease as a percentage of revenues for HE@sult of changes in revenue
components, discussed above, and decreases impergxpenses, travel, contract labor, and ho$tieg. Cost of revenues for PMD
increased approximately $700,000 from $3.0 miliim2001 to $3.7 million in 2002, and approximatdd166 and 54.5% of revenues for 2(
and 2001, respectively. This percentage increas2602 due to additional personnel expenses arat difect costs associated with our live
event development services and the redesignatioartdin personnel and other direct costs assaicwté online development and content
services as costs of revenues in 2002, which wenaqusly designated as product development cos2001. Cost of revenues for our
unallocated corporate functions increased appraeiyn&200,000 to $300,000 in 2002 from $100,002001. This increase is a result of
combining customer service and site operation &ffioto our corporate function.

Gross Margin.Gross margin (which we define as revenues lessaéaeivenues divided by revenues) improved to 62d2#ing 2002 from
57.3% during 2001. This improvement is a resuihofeased revenues as well as the change in reveixué&ross margins for HCO were
80.3% and 66.7% for 2002 and 2001, respectivelgs&margins for PMD were 38.9% and 45.5% for 20622001,



22




Table of Contents
respectively.

Product DevelopmenProduct development expenses decreased approxy$&@0,000, or 7.2%, to $4.7 million for 2002 from
approximately $5.0 million for 2001. The reductiarproduct development expenses is associatedowitithange in focus away from the
development, maintenance, and support of our iestéarning management products and certain cbdsrelopment to an increased focus
on fewer specific new products. Product developregpenses as a percentage of revenues decred2®6% for 2002 from 37.3% for 2001.
The decrease as a percentage of revenues resultedhicreased revenues and lower support costsiassd with our installed learning
management products and lower development costsiatsd with content and application maintenance.

Product development expenses for HCO increased,@306rom $2.7 million in 2001 to $3.2 million iMA2, or 20.5%, and approximated
33.2% and 33.8% of revenues for 2002 and 2001eotisply. The increase is related to the develogrogoertain content and specific new
products, but such increases were partially offgedeclines associated with maintaining fewer ihestidearning management products.
Product development expenses for PMD decreased@®@€om $1.1 million in 2001 to $700,000 in 2002 38.2%, and approximated
10.9% and 19.1% of revenues for 2002 and 2001eotisely. The decrease is related to a redesigmaticertain personnel and other direct
costs associated with online development and costgrices as a cost of revenues. Product develoipexpenses for the PMD unit during
2002 were focused on the development of Hospital®@i . The unallocated corporate portion of our prodistelopment expenses
decreased approximately $500,000 from $1.3 miliioR001 to $800,000 in 2002, or 39.4%, primarilguiéing from an increased focus on
development of certain content and new producte@ioHCO unit. Our product development efforts t&guffrom platform development by
corporate personnel in 2001 to specific new prodegelopments within the HCO and PMD units durifg2

Sales and Marketing Expens&ales and marketing expenses, including persommstd,cdncreased by $500,000, or 9.0%, from $5.8aniln
2001 to approximately $6.4 million in 2002. There&se was a result of additional sales commissib#800,000 associated with higher new
contract values in 2002 compared to 2001. Thise@ee was partially offset by decreases in persoelabd expenses and travel. Sales and
marketing expenses as a percentage of revenuesadedrfrom 43.7% in 2001 to 40.7% in 2002, primad a result of increased revenues.

Sales and marketing expenses for HCO increasedédppately $300,000 from $4.6 million in 2001 to $4nillion in 2002, and approximat
49.8% and 57.7% of revenues during 2002 and 2@&pectively. This percentage decreased in 2002adinereases in HCO revenues and
decreases in personnel expenses and travel of (BB ®ffset by increases in sales commissions 00 $®0. Sales and marketing expenses
for PMD increased approximately $200,000 from $fiion in 2001 to $1.5 million in 2002, and appimated 24.7% and 23.4% of
revenues during 2002 and 2001, respectively. Theepgage increased during 2002 due to additiones Emmmissions associated with hic
new contract values during 2002 and an increapelisonnel compared to 2001.

Depreciation and AmortizatioiDepreciation and amortization decreased by $5.Bomjlor 73.2%, from $9.9 million for 2001 to
approximately $4.4 million for 2002. The decreasatiributable to the discontinuation of goodwiti@tization, which resulted from the
implementation of new accounting standards durid@e2

Other General and Administrativ®ther general and administrative expenses decregg@dximately $700,000, or 10.0%, from $7.1 millio
for 2001 to approximately $6.4 million for 2002.dxding the gain on a contract renegotiation witebMID of $1.5 million during 2001,
other general and administrative expenses decreggedximately $2.2 million, or 31.1%, primarily asesult of consolidating offices and
corporate functions. Other general and adminiseatxpenses as a percentage of revenues decrea2é% for 2002 from 52.8% for 2001.

Other general and administrative expenses for HE@eahsed $1.4 million from $2.5 million in 2001%b.1 million in 2002, and
approximated 11.6% and 31.4% of revenues for 20022801, respectively. The percentage decreasadesult of increased revenues and
lower expenses associated with the consolidatiaffafes. Other general and administrative expefmeBMD were comparable between
2002 and 2001, approximating 15.7% and 16.4% afmmees, respectively. Other general and adminig&ratkpenses for our unallocated
corporate functions, excluding the gain on the WBbbddntract renegotiation of $1.5 million, decrea$860,000 from $5.2 million in 2001
$4.3 million in 2002, or 16.8%, primarily as a rksaf consolidating offices and corporate functions
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Office Consolidation Charg&.he Company recorded office consolidation chargeZ0D2 and 2001, totaling approximately $165,000 an
$401,000, respectively, as a result of closurdnefRaleigh office in 2002 and the Dallas and Bosffices in 2001. The charge in 2002
consisted of lease obligations in excess of estichatiblease income. The charge in 2001 consistedsd obligations in excess of estimated
sublease income and impairment of certain fixeétas3 he closure of these facilities resulted ftamCompany’s actions to consolidate
facilities and eliminate duplicative tasks in ortiemaximize economies of scale within the orgatiora

Impairment of Lon-lived Assets The Company recorded impairment charges in 26022801 totaling approximately $105,000 and
$712,000, respectively. During 2002, the impairmess resulted from prepaid content developmers feewhich the future estimated cash
flows did not exceed the carrying value of theteddacontent. During 2001, approximately $400,00thefimpairment related to prepaid
content development fees for which the future et cash flows did not exceed the carrying vafuberelated content. In addition, during
2001 we recognized a loss of approximately $312rétdled to fixed assets that will not be usediinrfe operations. The assets were written
down to their estimated fair value, net of sellowgts.

Other Income/Expens@ther income/expense decreased $1.1 million, or,88%& income of $1.8 million for 2001 to income of
approximately $700,000 for 2002. The decrease tebfilom a reduction of interest income from inwesits in marketable securities due to
lower invested balances and to a lesser degreey ipeld rates.

Cumulative effect of a change in accounting prifeciVe adopted SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Intangibleséts,"effective January 1, 20(
In accordance with the transitional adoption priovis of SFAS No. 142, we recorded a non-cash gdbimpairment charge associated with
our HCO unit of $5.0 million. The non-cash chargs been recorded as a cumulative effect of a chareyounting principle as of

January 1, 2002. See Note 6 to the ConsolidateghEial Statements for additional information.

Net LossNet loss decreased approximately $3.0 million,%0%, from a loss of $19.6 million for 2001 to admf approximately

$16.6 million for 2002, due to the factors mentidradove. Pro forma net loss, adjusted for the discoation of goodwill amortization of
$5.3 million and adjusted for the cumulative effeta change in accounting principle of $5.0 milli@ecreased $2.6 million, or 13.1%, to a
pro forma loss of $11.6 million for 2002 from a gooma loss of $14.2 million for 2001.

24




Table of Contents
SELECTED QUARTERLY OPERATING RESULTS

The following tables set forth selected stateméimiperations data for the eight quarters ended Dbee 31, 2003 and 2002 both in absolute
dollars and as a percentage of total revenuesinftination for each quarter has been preparedibstantially the same basis as the audited
statements included in other parts of this repod; @ our opinion, includes all adjustments, cstisg of only normal recurring adjustments,
necessary for a fair presentation of the resultgpefations for these periods. You should readitiisemation in conjunction with
HealthStream’s Consolidated Financial Statemendselated notes thereto included elsewhere inrégert. The operating results for any
quarter are not necessarily indicative of the tsgol be expected in the future.

Quarter Ended

March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31

2003 2003 2003 2003

(In thousands, except per share date

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA

Revenues, ne¢ $ 4,417 $ 4,67( $ 4,34 $ 4,76¢
Operating costs and expens
Cost of revenue 1,49¢ 1,604 1,402 1,76¢
Product developmel 95t 811 77C 711
Sales and marketir 1,12¢ 1,23¢ 93¢ 1,142
Depreciatior 37¢ 37¢ 343 274
Amortization 52C 47¢ 44k 232
Other general and administrative exper 1,42t 1,27¢ 1,152 1,131
Total operating costs and expen 5,89¢ 5,78 5,051 5,257
Loss from operation (1,482) (1,11%) (709 (497
Other income 12: 10€ 85 73
Net loss $(1,359 $(1,01)) $ (629 $ (419
I I | |
Net loss per shar- basic and dilute $ (0.09) $ (0.0%) $ (0.09) $ (0.02)
| | | |
Weighted average shares of common stock outstarding
basic and dilute 20,30¢ 20,36 20,42: 20,44«
| | | |
Quarter Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31
2002 2002 2002 2002
(In thousands, except per share data)
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA
Revenues, ne¢ $ 3,53¢ $ 4,13« $ 4,05¢ $ 4,068
Operating costs and expens
Cost of revenue 1,832 1,55¢ 1,34¢ 1,231
Product developmel 1,00¢ 1,215 1,21z 1,241
Sales and marketir 1,561 1,65¢ 1,48( 1,725
Depreciatior 44¢ 39¢ 39t 391
Amortization 713 733 68E 63C
Other general and administrative exper 1,64¢ 1,881 1,48¢ 1,391
Office consolidation charg — 97 — 67
Impairment of lon-lived asset: — — — 10t
Total operating costs and expen 7,21z 7,545 6,61( 6,78
Loss from operation (3,677%) (3,409 (2,552 (2,720
Other income 24¢ 16¢ 171 12¢

Net loss before cumulative effect of a chang
accounting principlt (3,429 (3,240 (2,38)) (2,59))
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting pritkc  (5,000) — — —



Net loss $(8,429)
|

Net loss per sha— basic and diluted, before cumulative
effect of a change in accounting princi $ (0.17)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting prife (0.25)

Net loss per shai- basic and dilute: $ (0.42)
I

Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding
— basic and dilute 20,19¢
|

25

$(3,240)

$ (0.16)

$ (0.16)

20,25

$(2,38))

$ (0.12)

$ (0.12)

20,29(

$(2,59))

$ (0.19)

$ (0.19)

20,30¢
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Quarter Ended

March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31

2003 2003 2003 2003

(% of Revenues)

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA

Revenue: 100.( 100.( 100.( 100.(

Operating costs and expens
Cost of revenue 33.¢ 34.c 32.2 37.1
Product developmel 21.€ 17.2 17.7 14.¢
Sales and marketir 25.€ 26.t 21.€ 24.C
Depreciatior 8.5 8.1 7.8 5.7
Amortization 11.¢ 10.2 10.2 4.¢
Other general and administrative exper 32.2 27.L 26.€ 23.71
Total operating costs and expen 133.€ 123.¢ 116.: 110.:
Loss from operation (33.6 (23.9 (16.9) (10.9)
Other income 2.8 2.3 2.C 1.t
Net loss (30.9) (21.¢) (14.9) (8.9
| | | |

Quarter Ended

March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,

2002 2002 2002 2002

(% of Revenues)

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA

Revenue: 100.( 100.( 100.( 100.(
Operating costs and expens

Cost of revenue 51.¢ 37.7 33.2 30.3
Product developmel 28.t 29.t 29.¢ 30.t
Sales and marketir 442 40.1 36.5 42.F
Depreciatior 12.7 9.€ 9.7 9.€
Amortization 20.z 17.7 16.¢ 15t
Other general and administrative exper 46.7 45t 36.7 34.2
Office consolidation charg — 2.4 — 1.7
Impairment of lon-lived asset: — — — 2.€
Total operating costs and expen 204.1 182.t 163.( 166.¢
Loss from operation (104.7) (82.5) (63.0 (66.9)
Other income 7.C 4.1 4.2 3.2

Net loss before cumulative effect of a change roaoting
principle (97.7) (78.4) (58.8) (63.7)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting pritec (141.9 — — —
Net loss (238.5) (78.9 (58.¢) (63.7)
| I I I

Factors Affecting Quarterly Operating Results

Revenues from our subscription products are reeeghniatably over the subscription term. Revenuas fales of products and services to
pharmaceutical and medical device companies caulject to seasonal factors as a result of timfrpoferences and live events as well as
drug and product introductions and budget cyclesfich companies. During the first quarter of 2002 recorded a $5.0 million charge as a
cumulative effect of a change in accounting prilecgs a result of applying new accounting rulegfoodwill (See Note 6 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements). During the second and fayutirters of 2002, we recorded office consolidatibarges for the closure of our Raleigh,
NC office.

Liquidity and Capital Resources



Since our inception, we have financed our operatlargely through proceeds from our IPO, privatepments of equity securities, loans
from related parties and, to an increasing exfenity revenues generated from the sale of our pitsdarad services.

Net cash used in operating activities was approtém&1.1 million during 2003, compared to $5.8lioi during 2002. The improvement
cash consumption primarily resulted from the dexlimnet loss, before the cumulative effect of ange in accounting principle in 2002, of
$8.2 million. We also made improvements in accovedgivable collection days during 2003. The nundietays sales outstanding (DSO)
2003 was 50 days compared to 77 days for 2002 Chimepany calculates DSO by dividing the accountsivable balance (excluding
unbilled and other receivables) by average dairgmees for the year. Our primary use of cash dW2i@g, in addition to funding operations,
resulted from payments of bonuses to employeesn®@002, cash was primarily used to fund operatixgenses.
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Net cash provided by investing activities was appnately $11.1 million in 2003 and $5.2 million 2002. The primary source of cask
2003 resulted from maturities of marketable semsiof $11.8 million, offset by acquisitions of pesty and equipment of $700,000. During
2003, we elected not to reinvest in long-term miatide securities, rather such funds were maintaiméih-grade investments with
maturities of less than three months. During 20@2received proceeds from the sales and matudtiegarketable securities of $15.6 millic
offset by purchases of marketable securities of #8llion and acquisitions of property and equiptnei$600,000. Our capital additions
during 2003 and 2002 were primarily comprised ofilaere for our hosting facility and computer anficef equipment.

Cash provided by financing activities was approsteha$100,000 during 2003, while $100,000 was whatihg 2002. The primary sources
cash for 2003 resulted from proceeds from the rsseiaf common stock from both the exercise of eygdastock options and the Employee
Stock Purchase Plan, offset by payments underatdpitse obligations. During 2002, cash used iarfiing activities primarily related to
payments under capital lease obligations, offsehbyissuance of common stock for our EmployeelkSRagchase Plan.

As of December 31, 2003, our primary source ofitliy was $18.0 million of cash and cash equivadengstricted cash, investments in
marketable securities, and related interest rebtsvaVe have no bank credit facility or other ingkelness other than capital lease obligations.
As of February 29, 2004, we had cash and cash &lguits, restricted cash, investments and relatedeist receivable of approximately

$17.1 million. From January 1, through FebruaryZ®4, we had capital expenditures of approximz80,000, primarily related to
hardware and software additions.

We believe that our cash and cash equivalentsjatest cash, investments in marketable securitielsralated interest receivable will be
sufficient to meet anticipated cash needs for wayldapital, new product development, capital exjiares and acquisitions for at least the
next 12 months. Our growth strategy may also ineladquiring companies that complement our prodamdisservices. We anticipate that
these acquisitions, if any, will be effected thrbugcombination of stock and cash consideratior. i$duance of stock as consideration for an
acquisition could have a dilutive effect on ourcétprice. Failure to generate sufficient cash ffoem operations or raise additional capital
when required during or following that period irffizient amounts and on terms acceptable to usdchaim our business, financial condition
and results of operations.

Commitments and Contingencies
We expect that our capital expenditures will berappnately $2.0 million in 2004.

Our strategic alliances have typically providedgayments to content partners based on revenuedesnetbpment partners and other parties
based on services rendered. We expect to contimikaisarrangements in the future. In additionhege commitments, we have capital lease
obligations and operating lease commitments foroparating facilities in Nashville, TN and Denv€Q, and closed facilities in Dallas, TX
and Raleigh, NC.

A summary of future anticipated payments for commeitts and other contractual obligations are owtlinelow:

Payments due by perioi

More than 5
Less than 1 yeal 1-3years 3-5years years Total
Capital lease obligatior $ 40,97: $ 1,212 $ —  $ — $ 42,18¢
Operating lease 753,32¢ 540,07: 224,40: 134,63( 1,652,43.
Purchase commitmen 535,00( 270,00( — — 805,00(
Other contractual obligatior 366,87! — — — 366,87!
Total $1,696,18 $811,28! $224,40. $134,63(  $2,866,49
| | | | |

Purchase commitments include the acquisition offaer hardware and software for an additional hgstacility in Nashville, TN. We
acquired assets of approximately $400,000 for ttihg facility from January 1, through February 2904. The remaining purchase
commitments include minimum purchases for copyaresgrvices. Other contractual obligations corfifixed commitments resulting from
agreements with various business partners.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
None.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Stand&aksrd (FASB) issued FIN 46, “Consolidation of \é&bie Interest Entities,” to expand
upon and strengthen existing accounting guidaraeatidresses when a company should include imésdial statements the assi



liabilities and activities of another entity. Priorthe effective date of FIN 46, a company gemgfad included another entity in its
consolidated financial statements only if it coliéd the entity through voting interests. FIN 4@nobed that guidance by requiring a variable
interest entity, as defined, to be consolidated lspmpany if that company is subject to a majaftthe risk of loss from the variable interest
entity’s activities or is entitled to receive a wdjy of the entity’s residual returns or both. F8 also requires disclosure about variable
interest entities that the company is not requicecbnsolidate but in which it has a significantigble interest. The consolidation
requirements of FIN 46 apply immediately to vareiniterest entities created after January 31, 20@3n the first fiscal year or interim
period ending after March 15, 2004 for entitiesatee before January 31, 2003. Certain of the discorequirements apply in all financial
statements issued after January 31, 2003, regarafeshen the variable interest entity was esthblis The adoption of FIN 46 did not have a
material impact on our consolidated financial posior results of operations.

In May 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Finarstaiounting Standards (SFAS) No. 150 “Accounting@ertain Financial Instruments
with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equit¥his Statement establishes standards for hoissarer classifies and measures certain
financial instruments with characteristics of bb#ilities and equity. Financial instruments tfet within the scope of SFAS No. 150 must
be classified by the issuer as liabilities (or &s#esome circumstances). Many of those instrumesmte previously classified as equity. The
Statement is effective for financial instrumentteeed into or modified after May 31, 2003, and ot¥ise is effective at the beginning of the
first interim period beginning after June 15, 200Be adoption of SFAS No. 150 did not have a malt@éripact on our consolidated financial
position or results of operations.

27




Table of Contents
ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk

We are exposed to market risk from changes inéstenates. We do not have any foreign currencyangh rate risk or commodity price risk.
As of December 31, 2003, we had no outstandingbitedimess other than approximately $40,000 of ddpéae obligations. Accordingly, the
Company is not exposed to significant interest nadeket risk with respect to liabilities. The Compas exposed to market risk with respect
to its cash and investment balances. At Decemhe2@®13, the Company had cash and cash equivatestdacted cash, investments in
marketable securities, and related interest reb&vataling approximately $18.0 million. Currentestment rates of return approximate 1-
2%. Assuming a 1.5% rate of return on $18.0 milli@mypothetical 10% decrease in interest rateddrdecrease interest income and incr
the net loss on an annualized basis by approxign&g1,000.

The Company manages its investment risk by invegstircorporate debt securities, foreign corporatet @nd secured corporate debt
securities with minimum acceptable credit ratirfgs:. certificates of deposit and corporate obligaiaatings must be A2/A or better; A1/P1
or better for commercial paper; A2/A or better faxable or tax advantaged auction rate securitidsfaA or better for tax free auction rate
securities. The Company also requires that allrigeEsimust mature within 24 months from the oradisettlement date, the average portfolio
shall not exceed 18 months, and the greater of @0%$6.0 million shall mature within 90 days. Furththe Company’s investment policy also
limits concentration exposure and other potenisil areas.

The above market risk discussion and the estimetgalints presented are forward-looking statememsaoket risk assuming the occurrence
of certain adverse market conditions. Actual resintthe future may differ materially from thos@jacted as a result of actual developments
in the market.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
HealthStream, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of HealthStream, Inc. as of Decembe2®13 and 2002, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, shareholeiguity (deficit), and cash flows for each of tineee years in the period ended
December 31, 2003. These financial statementdareesponsibility of the Company’s management. i@sponsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based omodits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with audi&tagdards generally accepted in the United Statesse standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout whether the financial statements are fregaterial misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgdhe amounts and disclosures in the finarstatements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, as well asairgj the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits providesgonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@alove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial position of
HealthStream, Inc. at December 31, 2003 and 20GRtte consolidated results of its operations &édash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2003, in confgrmith accounting principles generally acceptethim United States.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrst&ements, in 2002, the Company changed itsadathaccounting for goodwill and ott
intangible assets upon adoption of a new accoustizugdard.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF
Nashville, Tennesse

February 10, 2004, except for Note 16 as
to which the date is March 24, 20
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Investments in short term marketable secur
Restricted cas
Interest receivabl

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubsfttounts of $278,502 and $295,704 at

December 31, 2003 and 2002, respecti
Accounts receivabl- unbilled
Prepaid development fees, net of amortiza
Other prepaid expenses and other current a

Total current asse
Property and equipmer
Furniture and fixture
Equipment
Leasehold improvemen

Less accumulated depreciation and amortize

Goodwill

Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortizaifd$6,351,860 and $5,211,965 at
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respecti

Investments in marketable securit

Notes receivabl- related party

Other asset

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl

Accrued liabilities

Accrued compensation and related expe

Registration liabilities

Deferred revenu

Current portion of capital lease obligatic

Total current liabilities
Capital lease obligations, less current por
Commitments and contingenci
Shareholder equity:

Common stock, no par value, 75,000,000 shares amgialp 20,455,746 and 20,322,687

shares issued and outstanding at December 31,8@D3002, respective
Accumulated other comprehensive inca
Accumulated defici

Total shareholde’ equity

Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity

December 31

December 31

2003 2002

$ 14,219,80 $ 4,069,63
2,957,70: 12,087,00
723,87¢ 835,43
119,26: 306,50
2,497,99 3,346,35!
592,53 248,43
238,56( 406,41(
805,97 587,74
22,155,72 21,887,53
920,72 930,65
4,896,39! 4,361,46!
1,239,35. 1,232,08:
7,056,47; 6,524,201
(5,053,53) (3,855,92)
2,002,94: 2,668,28!
3,306,68: 3,306,68
510,28: 1,650,17

— 3,066,06

233,00: 233,00:
190,00 101,45°

$ 28,398,64 $32,913,21
| |
$ 864,97 $ 718,80
967,99 1,179,79!
172,95( 763,52
735,26! 900,65
3,059,24: 3,346,22.
39,02 66,92
5,839,45! 6,975,92;
1,19¢ 41,01
91,416,85 91,223,05
5,47¢ 125,53
(68,864,33) (65,452,30)
22,557,98 25,896,28
$ 28,398,64 $32,913,21
| |

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteiements.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues, net of warrant expense-0- in 2003 and 2002 and $1,489,933 in 2!
Operating costs and expens

Cost of revenue

Product developmel

Sales and marketir

Depreciatior

Amortization of goodwill

Amortization of intangibles, content fees, fixegatiies, and prepaid compensat

Other general and administrative exper

Office consolidation charg

Impairment of lon-lived asset:

Total operating costs and expen
Loss from operation
Other income (expense
Interest and other incon
Realized loss on investmer
Interest expens
Other expens

Net loss, before cumulative effect of a changecitoanting principle
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting pritec

Net loss

Net loss per shar

Basic and diluted net loss before cumulative eféée change in accounting princiy

Cumulative effect of a change in accounting prite

Basic and diluted net loss per sh

Weighted average shares of common stock outstan
Basic and dilutes

For the Year Ended December 31

2003 2002 2001

$18,19507 $15,789,59  $ 13,503,30
6,267,74- 5,970,49: 5,772,32
3,247,241 4,678,82 5,040,40
4,444,99 6,425,02: 5,894,58
1,371,01 1,632,961 1,756,40
— — 5,360,38
1,676,45. 2,761,50 2,819,44°
4,986,31 6,409,57( 7,124,24
— 164,78: 400,67

— 105,00( 712,34
2199376  28,148,17  34,880,81
(3,798,69)  (12,358,57)  (21,377,50)
415 41 776,72 2,019,72(
— — (99,920)
(22,466) (29,926 (49,56¢)
(6,286) (29,467) (68,65%)
386,66 717,33 1,801,57!
(3,412,03)  (11,641,24)  (19,575,92)
— (5,000,001 —
$(3,412,03) $(16,641,24) $(19,575,92)
| | |
$ (017 $ (057 $ (0.95)
— (0.25) —
$ (017 $ 0.82) $ (0.95)
| | |
20,383,13  20,261,06  19,920,52
| | |

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteiements.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (DE FICIT)

Accumulated

Other Total
Common Stock Accumulated Comprehensive Shareholder¢
Shares Amount Deficit Income Equity (Deficit)
Balance at December 31, 2C 21,242,31  $91,221,77 $(29,235,13) $ 30,55¢ $62,017,19
Net loss — — (19,575,92) — (19,575,92)
Unrealized gain on investments in marketable sdesri
net of reclassification adjustment and — — — 48,68 48,68
Comprehensive los (19,527,24)
Exercise of stock optior 8,70( 10,551 — — 10,551
Issuance of common stock in acquisitit 181,25( 300,18t — — 300,18t
Issuance of common stock to Employee Stock Purchase
Plan 53,60¢ 56,95¢ — — 56,95¢
Repurchase of shares in connection with WebMD
renegotiatior (1,111,11) (1,981,44) — — (1,981,44)
Cancellation of restricted sto (2,21%) — — — —
Valuation of WebMD repurchase rig — 120,00( — — 120,00(
Issuance of stock options to advisory bo: — 57,31¢ — — 57,31¢
Recognition of warrant expen — 1,489,93. — — 1,489,93
Balance at December 31, 2C 20,372,54 91,275,28 (48,811,06) 79,24( 42,543,45
Net loss — — (16,641,24) — (16,641,24)
Unrealized gain on investments in marketable sgesri
net of tax — — — 46,29¢ 46,29¢
Comprehensive los (16,594,94)
Issuance of common stock to Employee Stock Purchase
Plan 35,77( 38,00¢ — — 38,00¢
Issuance of stock options to advisory boz — 11,38¢ — — 11,38¢
Modification of stock option grar — 5,411 — — 5,411
Retirement of common stock in connection with EMIne
escrow resolutiol (85,625 (107,03) — — (107,03)
Balance at December 31, 2C 20,322,68 91,223,05 (65,452,30) 125,53t 25,896,28
Net loss — — (3,412,03) — (3,412,03)
Unrealized loss on investments in marketable stesi
net of tax — — — (120,06) (120,06)
Comprehensive los (3,532,09)
Exercise of stock optior 88,31¢ 150,36( — — 150,36(
Issuance of common stock to Employee Stock Purchase
Plan 44,74 38,02¢ — — 38,02¢
Modification of stock option grar — 5,412 — — 5,412
Balance at December 31, 2C 20,455,74  $91,416,85 $(68,864,33) $ 547t $ 22,557,98
| | | | |

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteiements.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities
Depreciatior
Amortization of goodwill

Amortization of intangibles, content fees, fixegatiies, and prepaid compensat

Provision for doubtful accoun
Gain on WebMD renegotiatic
Office consolidation charg
Impairment of lon-lived asset:
Non cash warrant expen
Non cash compensation expel
Realized loss on disposal of property and equipr
Realized loss on investmet
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting prite
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, exatudffects of acquisition:
Accounts and unbilled receivabl
Restricted cas
Interest receivabl
Prepaid development fe
Other prepaid expenses and other current a
Other asset
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities and compensati
Registration liabilities
Deferred revenu

Net cash used in operating activit
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisitions, net of cash acquir
Proceeds from maturities and sale of investmentsarketable securitie
Purchase of investments in marketable secui
Issuance of note receivat- related party
Repayments on note receiva
Purchase of property and equipm

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repurchase of common stock from Webl
Issuance of common stock to Employee Stock Purdhkst
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti
Payments on capital lease obligatit

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe

Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

For the Year Ended December 31

Total cash and cash equivalents, restricted cagbsiments in marketable securities, and

accrued interest at end of peri

(continued)
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2003 2002 2001
$(3,412,03) $(16,641,24)  $(19,575,92)
1,371,01 1,632,96 1,756,40;
— — 5,360,38
1,676,45. 2,761,50 2,819,44°
192,50( 295,00 150,00
_ —_ (1,500,001
— 164,78: 400,67
— 105,00( 712,34
_ — 1,489,93;
5,41z 16,79¢ 57,31¢
14,81+ 18,63" 68,65t
— — 99,92(
— 5,000,001 —
311,75¢ 394,68: (562,75¢)
111,55¢ (315,25)) 274,15
187,24« 231,07 40,94¢
(269,54:) (127,319 (1,206,83)
(246,891 (66,179 203,30
107,26 419,79: 382,01
146,17: (170,45 (261,742
(802,37) 117,71 (363,88%)
(165,38¢) 266,86t (160,55
(286,97¢) 72,39¢ 114,58;
(1,059,01)  (5,823,22) (9,701,61)
— — (328,98¢)
11,809,00  15,568,33 10,143,22
— (9,697,81)  (11,263,43)
— — (215,00()
— — 128,11¢
(720,48:) (625,531 (1,588,44)
11,088,51 5,244,98; (3,124,51)
— — (1,981,44)
38,02¢ 38,00¢ 56,95¢
150,36( 10,557
(67,717 (137,56¢) (343,08
120,67: (99,567) (2,257,01)
10,150,17 (677,80  (15,083,13)
4,069,63 4,747,43. 19,830,57
$14,219.80 $ 4,069,63  $ 4,747,43.
| | |
$18,020,65 $20,364,65  $27,215,29
| | |
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

For the Year Ended December 31

2003 2002 2001
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Interest paic $22,46¢ $29,92¢ $ 51,83:
| | |
Capital lease obligations incurr $ — % — $ 8367¢
| | ]
Issuance of common stock in connection with actjaisiof companie: $ — 8 — $ 300,18t
| | ]
Issuance of common stock to advisory boi $ — $11,38¢ $ 57,31¢
| | |
Effects of acquisitions
Estimated fair value of assets acqui $ —$ — $ 500
Purchase price in excess of net assets acq — — 1,036,49.
Estimated fair value of liabilities assum — — (412,31)
Stock issuet — — (300,18¢)
Cash paic — — 328,98t
Less cash acquire — — —
| | ]
Net cash paid for acquisitiol $ — $ — $ 328,98
| | ]

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteiements.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Reporting Entity

HealthStream, Inc. (“the Company”) was incorporate@i990 as a Tennessee corporation and is baséalsinville, Tennessee. We provide
Internet-based services and solutions to meetriyeing training and continuing education need$efhealthcare community. These
solutions provide, deliver and track computer basdatation for our customers in the United States@anada through our application
service provider (ASP) products and installed le@ymanagement products. We also provide the hesakhcommunity with live event
development services, content development sendcebassistance in the development of other eduatactivities, provided in a live,
written, or online format.

Business Segments

We operate our business in two segments: 1) serpicevided to healthcare organizations and prajesss, and 2) services provided to
pharmaceutical and medical device companies. SErthealthcare organizations and professionelisda offerings of our Internet-based
learning products, including authoring, maintenaaced support of our installed learning managemesdycts, courseware subscriptions and
competency tools. Our services to pharmaceutichhaedical device companies include live and ondidecational training activities for
healthcare professionals, content developmentcasyas well as online training for medical indysépresentatives.

Recognition of Revenue

Revenues are derived from providing services thnaug Internet-based learning products, maintenandesupport of our installed learning
management products, courseware subscriptionsgligat development, content development and otheation and training services.

We recognize revenue in accordance with Americatitirte of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) &ment of Position (SOP) 97-2,
“Software Revenue Recognition,” SEC Staff AccougtiBulletin No. 101, “Revenue Recognition,” Emergisgues Task Force (EITF) Issue
No. 9¢-19 “Reporting Revenue Gross Versus Net,” EITFésNio. 00-21 “Revenue Arrangements with Multiple iRelables” and other
authoritative guidance. This guidance provides teatnue recognized from software and other arraegés is to be allocated to each eler
of the arrangement based on the relative fair wahig¢he elements. While elements include softyaoelucts and post contract customer
support, fair value of each element is based oeabbe evidence specific to the vendor. If fairusatannot be determined for each element of
the arrangement, all revenue from the arrangenseeferred until fair value can be determined dil ail elements of the arrangement are
delivered and customer acceptance has occurress 8abur Internet-based learning products includgomer support, implementation
services, and training; therefore all revenuesdaferred until the Internet-based learning prodmanplemented, at which time revenues are
recognized ratably over the subscription servigégogeIn the event that circumstances occur whigke gse to uncertainty regarding the
collectibility of contracted amounts, revenue reatign is suspended until such uncertainty is reso)

Revenues derived from the delivery of servicesubhoour Internet-based learning products and caunsesubscriptions are recognized
ratably over the term of the subscription servigeeament. Software support and maintenance reverasesiated with our installed learning
management products are recognized ratably ovdethreof the related agreement, generally one y@guer training revenues are generally
recognized upon the completion of training.

We recognize revenue from live event developmenices and content development services basedeopditentage of completion method
using labor hours or similar event milestones.oMlier revenues are recognized as the related seraie performed or products are delivered.

From April 1, 2000 through September 2001, we hpdar service arrangement with HCA that included grant of a warrant to purchase
our common stock. Revenues were recognized asesmiere rendered, net of the amortization ofdlirevhlue of the related warrant.

Effective October 1, 2001, we entered into a new-f@ar agreement with HCA, replacing the prioreagnent that had approximately two
and one half years remaining in its term. Togettidn HCA, we mutually agreed to cancel the warfaeid by CIS Holdings, Inc. an affiliate
of HCA, to purchase our common stock. As a resegtno longer amortize the remaining cost of therararas a reduction of revenues. See
Note 3 for additional informatiot
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of the Company and its subsidiaries, alftath are wholly-owned. All inter-
company accounts and transactions have been etadiiraconsolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial stetets in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assas it affect the amounts reported in the findrst&@ements and accompanying notes.
Actual results could differ from those estimated anch differences could be material to the codat#id financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
We consider cash and cash equivalents to be uictedirhighly liquid investments with initial matties of less than three months.
Restricted Cash

Cash received for registration fees is classifedestricted cash on the accompanying consolidzkhce sheets. The use of this cash is
restricted because it is held on behalf of the cenasial supporter until services have been rendatadhich time the registration fees are
to pay certain expenses and fees for conductinggtlervices. Excess registration funds are typicathitted to the commercial supporter or
applied to other projects. Any deficiency in regiibn funds is billed to the commercial supporter.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company estimates its allowance for doubtfabaats using a specific identification method. Mgeraent determines the allowance for
doubtful accounts on a case-by-case basis, bastttbdacts and circumstances surrounding each fatgruncollectible receivable. An
allowance is also maintained for accounts thahatespecifically identified that may become uncdiilele in the future. Uncollectible
receivables are written-off in the period managerbetieves it has exhausted every opportunity tlecopayment from the customer. Bad
debt expense is recorded when events or circunestandicate an additional allowance is requirecetas our specific identification
approach.

Changes in the allowance for doubtful accountstaachmounts charged to bad debt expense werelasdol

Allowance
Balance at Charged to Allowance
Beginning of Costs and Balance at
Period Expenses Write -Offs End of Period
Year ended December &
2003 $295,70:« $192,50(  $209,70: $278,50:
2002 $288,15¢ $295,00(  $287,45: $295,70:
2001 $197,82! $150,00( $ 59,667 $288,15¢

Investments in marketable securities

Investments in marketable securities are class#gdvailable-for-sale and are stated at fair niaskdeie, with the unrealized gains and losses,
net of tax, reported in other comprehensive incoméhe accompanying consolidated balance sheeddizBe gains and losses and decline
market value judged to be other-than-temporaryngedtments in marketable securities are includedtérest and other income on the
accompanying consolidated statements of operatidres cost of securities sold is based on the speadéntification method. Interest and
dividends on securities classified as availablestle are included in interest and other incoméheraccompanying consolidated statements
of operations.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated on the basisstf Depreciation and amortization are providedhenstraight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives, except for assatder capital leases and leasehold improvemetishvare amortized over the shorter of
estimated useful life or their respective leasmter

Years
Furniture and fixture 5-10
Equipment 35

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase priee fair value of net tangible assets acquired. tighoDecember 31, 2001, goodwill was
amortized on a straight line basis over the explpéziods to be benefited, generally three to yiwars. Effective January 1, 2002 we adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SHA&)142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”qt@ment 142). We measure for
impairment at the reporting unit level using a disated cash flow model to determine the fair vaifithe reporting units. We will perform

our goodwill impairment test whenever events omges in facts or circumstances indicate that inmpant may exist, or at least annually
during the fourth quarter each year.

Intangible assets are comprised of content, custéiste, non-competition agreements and favoraddsé rights. These intangible assets are
considered to have definite useful lives and aregoamortized on a straight line basis over thecetgd periods to be benefited, generally
three to five years for content, two to three ydarcustomer lists, six months to two years fonfwompetition agreements, and over the ¢
term for favorable lease rights. Our weighted ageramortization period is 3.5 years. Favorabledemghts represent the difference between
contractual terms and market rates for obligatiomder lease contracts at the date of acquisitiiangible assets are reviewed for impairn
whenever events or changes in facts or circumssaincécate that the carrying amount of the assetg mot be recoverable.

Other Assets

Other assets are comprised of licensing feesptigeterm portion of content development fees ahdraissets of a long term nature.
Licensing and content development fees are amdrbased on the lives of the related agreementsecaidcreditation lives of the related
content, generally one to three years.

Long-Lived Assets

We account for assets of a long term nature (“lived assets”) in accordance with SFAS No. 144,¢éunting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” (Statement 144)jchirequires that companies consider whether evarthanges in facts and
circumstances, both internally and externally, nmaljcate that an impairment of long-lived assetsl ligr use are present. We measure any
impairment at the reporting unit level based orcadimted future cash flows from the reporting unduding the long-lived assets. The cash
flow estimates and discount rates incorporate mamagt's best estimates, using appropriate and masyoassumptions and projections at
the date of evaluation.

Through December 31, 2001, we accounted for loveglassets in accordance with SFAS No. 121, “Actogrior the Impairment of Long-
lived Assets and Long-lived Assets to be DisposgdSiatement 121). In accordance with Statemeidt, ¥ reviewed internal and external
factors to determine whether events or changescis or circumstances were present and indicafiae anpairment of long-lived assets.
Under Statement 121, the review included estimaitésture cash flows related to such long-livedetss

Management periodically evaluated the carrying eafilongtived assets, including property and equipmenteo#ssets and intangible as
and determined that there was no impairment asegeBiber 31, 2003. We recorded impairment chardg®deto property and equipment
and certain content assets totaling approximatedp¥00 and $712,000 for the years ended Decenlh@082 and 2001, respectively. See
Note 4 for additional informatior
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)
Accounts Receivable-Unbilled and Deferred Revenue

Accounts receivable-unbilled represents revenueegbior contracts accounted for on the percenthgeropletion basis for which invoices
have not been generated or billing milestonesdtatéhe contract have not been reached. Defeaeehue represents amounts, which have
been billed or collected, but not yet recognizecewvenue.

Income Taxes

Income taxes have been provided using the liabiligthod in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounfor Income Taxes.” Under the
liability method, deferred tax assets and liatgitare determined based on the temporary diffesdmetsveen the financial statement and tax
bases of assets and liabilities measured at tax that will be in effect for the year in which ttiéferences are expected to affect taxable
income. Valuation allowances are established wiszessary to reduce deferred tax assets to amopested to be realized.

Advertising

We expense the costs of advertising as incurregdordance with SOP 93-7, “Reporting on Advertistugts.” Advertising expense for the
years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 ppasxdmately $413,000, $483,000, and $548,000 wtisfmdy.

Product Development Costs

Product development costs includes internal anereat costs to develop and convert content forimernet-based learning and installed
learning management products. We capitalize theafdeatures and content developed by third partibere the life expectancy is greater
than one year and the anticipated cash flows frach sontent is expected to exceed the cost ofdhtent. During 2003 and 2002, we
capitalized approximately $400,000 and $100,00€peetively, related to third party content anddeadevelopment. Such amounts are
included in the accompanying consolidated balaheets under the captions “prepaid developmentdrdther assets.” We amortize
content and feature development over its expeddiahich is generally one to three years. Prodigstelopment and content development
costs that have been capitalized are subject &iadic impairment review in accordance with ouliggo During 2002 and 2001, we recorded
impairment charges of approximately $105,000 ar@D$DO, respectively, with respect to certain contevelopment fees. See Note 4 for
additional information.

We account for Web site development costs in aesare with EITF Issue No. 00-2 “Accounting for Weke®evelopment Costs,” which
provides guidance on capitalization versus expgnsircosts incurred to develop a Web site. We adipé costs incurred between the poin
establishing technological feasibility and geneetdéase when such costs are material. As of Dece®ih@003 and 2002, we had no
capitalized internal development costs for compstdtware developed for resale. We did not capgisadiny internal Web site development
costs during 2003 or 2002, since the costs relat@thnning or operation of such products and siteg costs incurred with respect to our
Internet-based learning products and Web sites imetgred prior to the application of EITF Issue.l06-2.

Net Loss Per Share

We compute net loss per share following SFAS N@&, 1Parnings Per Share,” (Statement 128). Undeptbgisions of Statement 128, basic
net loss per share is computed by dividing thdosst available to common shareholders for the gddriothe weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period. Dilait loss per share is computed by dividing thidass for the period by the weighted
average number of common and common equivalenésiutstanding during the period. Common equivalkates, composed of
incremental common shares issuable upon the erastistock options and warrants, escrowed or msttishares, and shares subject to
vesting are included in diluted net loss per shatbe extent these shares are dilutive. Commoivalgmt shares are not included in the
computation of diluted net loss per share for tharg ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 leettausffect on net loss per share wi
be anti-dilutive.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)
Concentrations of Credit Risk and Significant Custaners

We place our temporary excess cash investmeniglinguality, short-term money market instrumentstimes, such investments may be in
excess of the FDIC insurance limits.

We sell our learning management systems and othara¢ion services to various companies in the heafe industry that are located in the
United States and Canada. We perform ongoing ceeditiations of our customers’ financial conditaord generally require no collateral
from customers. During 2003, we derived approxityat&%, or $2.7 million, of net revenues from HO3uring 2002, we derived
approximately 18%, or $2.9 million, of net revenfresn HCA. During 2001, we derived approximateh?d,lor $1.5 million, of net revenues
from HCA, net of warrant expense of approximatelySmillion (See Note 3). The total amounts redeliedrom HCA at December 31, 2003
and 2002 were approximately $330,000 and $240,@8pectively.

Stock Based Compensation

We grant stock options for a fixed number of shéamemsmployees and other parties with an exerciee piot less than the fair value of the
shares at the grant date. We account for stockmpgtiants in accordance with Accounting Princifdesard Opinion No. 25 “Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees” (APB 25) and relateerpretations. Under APB 25, because the exercise pf our employee stock options is
not less than the market price of the underlyilnglsbn the date of grant, no compensation expensezorded. To the extent that options are
issued to members of our advisory boards or nonlareps, the value of such options is measureddordance with the provisions of SFAS
No. 123,“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (Stateti&B). During the years ended December 31, 200& 2and 2001, we
recorded expense of approximately $5,000, $17.800.$57,000, respectively, related to options @it advisory board members and non-
employees. We have disclosed the fair value retiogniequirements of Statement 123 and the additidisclosure requirements as specified
in SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Conmgagion-Transition and Disclosure,” which amendgeteent 123.

If the alternative method of accounting for stog&entive plans prescribed by Statement 123 had felewed, our net loss and net loss per
share would have been:

Year Ended December 31

2003 2002 2001
Net loss as reporte $(3,412,03) $(16,641,24) $(19,575,92)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expensgdiet!in
reported net loss, net of related ta 5,412 16,79¢ 57,31¢
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensatioarese
determined under fair value based method for adirde/net of
related tax effect (699,385 (842,51) (1,140,39))
Pro forma net los $(4,106,00) $(17,466,95) $(20,659,00)
| | |
Basic and diluted net loss per sh- as reported: $ (0.17) $ (0.82) $ (0.9¢)
| | |
Basic and diluted net loss per sh- pro forma* $ (0.20) $ (0.8¢) $ (1.0
.| I I

* The net loss per share as reported and pro fowhéoss per share for the year ended Decemb@0B2, includes a $5.0 million or ($0.25)
per share charge related to a cumulative effeataffange in accounting principle.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The following methods and assumptions were usedtimating fair value for financial instruments:

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted caee carrying amounts approximate the fair valueahse of the short-term maturity or short-term
nature of such instruments.

Accounts receivable, accounts receivi-unbilled, interest receivable, accounts payabtaraed liabilities and deferred revenuthe
carrying amounts, net of any allowance for doubdftdounts, approximate the fair value becauseeo$hior-term nature of such instrumen



Notes receivableThe carrying amounts approximate fair value basethe consideration provided and the estimatedideretion expected
to be received.

Investments in marketable securitiThe carrying amounts approximate the fair valueslas quoted market prices.
Newly Issued Accounting Standards

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting StandBaisrd (FASB) issued FIN 46, “Consolidation of \&ddie Interest Entities,” to expand
upon and strengthen existing accounting guidaraeatidresses when a company should include im#sdial statements the assets,
liabilities and activities of another entity. Priorthe effective date of FIN 46, a company gemgfad included another entity in its
consolidated financial statements only if it colied the entity through voting interests. FIN 4@nobed that guidance by requiring a variable
interest entity, as defined, to be consolidated lspmpany if that company is subject to a majaftthe risk of loss from the variable interest
entity’s activities or is entitled to receive a widjy of the entity’s residual returns or both. F8 also requires disclosure about variable
interest entities that the company is not requicecbnsolidate but in which it has a significantigble interest. The consolidation
requirements of FIN 46 apply immediately to vareiniterest entities created after January 31, 20@3n the first fiscal year or interim
period ending after March 15, 2004 for entitiesatee before January 31, 2003. Certain of the disceorequirements apply in all financial
statements issued after January 31, 2003, regarofeshen the variable interest entity was esthblis The adoption of FIN 46 did not have a
material impact on our consolidated financial posior results of operations.

In May 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Finarktaiounting Standards (SFAS) No. 150 “Accounting@ertain Financial Instruments
with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equit¥his Statement establishes standards for hoissarer classifies and measures certain
financial instruments with characteristics of bb#ilities and equity. Financial instruments tfet within the scope of SFAS No. 150 must
be classified by the issuer as liabilities (or &s#esome circumstances). Many of those instrumesmte previously classified as equity. The
Statement is effective for financial instrumentteeed into or modified after May 31, 2003, and ot¥ise is effective at the beginning of the
first interim period beginning after June 15, 200Be adoption of SFAS No. 150 did not have a malt@éripact on our consolidated financial
position or results of operations.
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2. ACQUISITIONS

de’MEDICI SystemsOn January 26, 2001, we acquired substantidllyfdhe assets of de’MEDICI Systems (de’MEDICI}asiness unit of
Lippincott Williams & Wilkins, Inc., for approximaty $330,000 in cash and 181,250 shares of our acamstock. de’MEDICI provided
computer based education and training to over 23pitals and healthcare organizations. The actprisitas accounted for as a purchase.
Intangible assets acquired consisted of goodwilitf@mer lists, and trade name of $600,000, $400 A8 $100,000, respectively. As
discussed in Notes 1 and 6, amortization of goddwak discontinued as of December 31, 2001. Thimitefived intangibles, including
customer lists and trade name are being amortinedsiraight-line basis over three years. The pnm& impact of the dMEDICI acquisitior
would not have been material to the operating teguksented for 2001, therefore it is not presente

3. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common Stock

We are authorized to issue up to 75 million shafemmon stock.
Preferred Stock

We are authorized to issue up to 10 million shafgweferred stock in one or more series, havirggrétative voting powers, designations,
preferences, rights and qualifications, limitati@ngestrictions, and other terms as the Boardicdddors may fix in providing for the issuan
of such series, without any vote or action of thareholders. During 2000, all outstanding shargeefierred stock were converted into
common stock in connection with our IPO. There hagen no shares of preferred stock outstanding sinc IPO.

Warrants

During February 2000, we entered into a fgaar Online Education Services Provider Agreemettt WCA that included providing a warre
to purchase 2,182,568 shares of our common stoah ekercise price of $7.18 per share to CIS Hgkliinc., a subsidiary of HCA. The
warrant was exercisable over a four year periodiddithe terms of the agreement, HCA agreed to sl minimum of $12.0 million in
services from us over the term of the contractil@®ptember 2001, we amortized the fair valuehefwarrant ($8.8 million) as a reductior
revenues proportionately over the term of the aaagreement. The amortization fluctuated basetth@mevenues received from this
agreement.

Effective October 1, 2001 we revised the aboveagsent with HCA. The new four-year agreement, wigigtvides for a minimum of

$12.0 million in services, replaces the prior agrest that had approximately two and one half yearsaining. In addition, both parties
agreed to cancel the warrant held by CIS Holdifgs, As a result of the cancellation of the warravé no longer amortize the remaining ¢
of the warrant as a reduction of revenues. Dutregyear ended December 31, 2001 our revenues weauead by the expense related to this
warrant totaling approximately $1,490,000.

In connection with a distribution agreement durll®99, we provided a business partner with a watmaptirchase 245,032 shares of our
common stock at $4.06 per share. The warrantseekpitune 2009. The issuance of the warrants egsirtthe recognition of approximately
$748,000 of product development expense in 199%&tbof the 1999 warrant has been exercised Becémber 31, 2003.

4. IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

During the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002@0d, we performed impairment assessments of ogrlived assets including
identifiable intangibles with finite useful live#/e recorded impairment charges in our HCO businaiof approximately $105,000 and
$712,000 during 2002 and 2001, respectively. Tihmpairment charges were comprised of approximé&5,000 and $400,000 during
2002 and 2001, respectively, related to prepaiderdrdevelopment fees. These charges reflect theotation that the carrying value of the
related content exceeded the anticipated undisedwsa#sh flows to be generated from the sale ofdhént. The remainder of the charge
recorded in 2001 of approximately $312,000 relateproperty and equipment that was no longer todwel in future operations. As a result,
the carrying value of the property and equipmeid far sale was written down to its fair value,desstimated costs to sell, and was included
in other current assets in the accompanying coestgdil balance sheets. Fair value was determined lmasbids received from unrelated third
parties. The assets held for sale were sold duangiary 2002 at carrying value. There was no impait of long-lived assets during 2003.
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5. INVESTMENTS IN MARKETABLE SECURITIES

At December 31, 2003, investments in marketablar#tées, which were all classified as available-$aite, included the following:

Amortized Cost Unrealized Losses Unrealized Gains Fair Value
Corporate debt securiti $ 1,755,63 $ — $ 4,30¢ $ 1,759,94
Foreign corporate debt securit 1,196,59: — 1,167 1,197,76
$ 2,952,22i $ — $ 5,47¢ $ 2,957,70:
| | | |

At December 31, 2002, investments in marketablaritezs, which were all classified as available-$ate, included the following:

Amortized Cost Unrealized Losses Unrealized Gains Fair Value
Corporate debt securitii $ 9,841,00! $ — $ 80,90 $ 9,921,90
Foreign corporate debt securit 4,265,32. (2,55)) 33,43¢ 4,296,211
Secured corporate debt securit 921,21: — 13,74« 934,95¢
$15,027,53 $(2,55)) $128,08° $15,153,07
I | I I

All of the above debt securities at December 3D32@ature within one year.
6. GOODWILL

We account for goodwill under the provisions oft&taent 142, which modifies the approach and tinfimgevaluating impairment of
intangible assets, and also requires that gootiwitested for impairment at least annually usifejravalue method. Effective January 1,
2002, we recorded a transitional goodwill impairtiess of $5.0 million in the HCO reporting unit, éonnection with our adoption of
Statement 142. The charge was recorded as a cuvewddfiect of a change in accounting principle ur oonsolidated statement of operations.

We test goodwill for impairment using a discountagh flow model. The technique used to determiaddin value of our reporting units is
sensitive to estimates and assumptions associdtiedash flow from operations and its growth, disgbrates, and reporting unit terminal
values. If these estimates or their related assomgpthange in the future, we may be required ¢orceadditional impairment charges, which
could adversely impact our operating results ferglkriod in which such a determination is made.pé&féorm our annual impairment
evaluation of goodwill during the fourth quarterezfch year and as changes in facts and circumstardieate impairment exists. During our
annual impairment evaluation in the fourth quaotfe2003 and 2002, the results of our goodwill inipeEnt analysis indicated the fair value
our reporting units exceeded their carrying valUéerefore no impairment existed at December 3Q320d 2002.

A reconciliation of the net loss and net loss ers information for the years ended December 32322002 and 2001, adjusted for the
provisions of Statement 142, net of the relatednme tax effect, follows:

Years ended

December 31,

December 31,
2002

December 31,
2001

2003
Reported net los $(3,412,03)
Adjusted for amortization of goodw —
Adjusted for cumulative effect of a change in actmng
principle —
Adjusted net los $(3,412,03)
|

Basic and diluted net loss per sh
Reported net loss per shi— basic and dilute $ (0.1%)
Adjusted for amortization of goodw —
Adjusted for cumulative effect of a change in actng
principle —

$(16,641,24)

5,000,001

$(11,641,24)

$ (0.82)

0.2t

$(19,575,92)
5,360,38;

$(14,215,53)

$ (0.95)
0.2¢



Adjusted net loss per she- basic and dilute: $ (0.17) $ (0.57) $ (0.72)

The pro forma presentation above includes the itnpfathe one time gain on renegotiation of the W&b&reement during the year ended
December 31, 2001.
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6. GOODWILL (continued)

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwilltfer year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 ardl@s<o

HCO PMD Total
Balance at January 1, 20 $1,982,96. $1,323,72 $3,306,68
Changes in carrying value of goodw — — —
Balance at December 31, 2C $1,982,96. $1,323,72 $3,306,68:
| | ]

HCO PMD Total
Balance at January 1, 20 $ 6,982,96. $1,323,72 $ 8,306,68:
Transitional impairment los (5,000,00) — (5,000,001
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 1,982,96. $1,323,72 $ 3,306,68!
| | |

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

All intangible assets have been evaluated in aeourel with Statement 142 and are considered tofiratesuseful lives. The intangibles are
being amortized over their original useful livesnging from one to five years. Amortization of imggble assets was approximately
$1,140,000, $1,916,000, and $2,080,000 for thesyeaded December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, resplgctiv

Identifiable intangible assets are comprised offttlewing:

As of December 31, 200 As of December 31, 200

Accumulated Accumulated

Gross Amount Amortization Net Gross Amount Amortization Net
Content $3,500,00! $(3,050,001) $450,00( $3,500,00! $(2,277,77) $1,222,22:
Customer list: 2,940,001 (2,930,27) 9,722 2,940,001 (2,612,22) 327,77¢
Other 422,14. (371,58 50,56( 422 14 (321,96¢) 100,17¢
Total $6,862,14. $(6,351,861) $510,28: $6,862,14. $(5,211,96)) $1,650,17
| | | | |
Estimated amortization expense for the years endagember 31, is as follows:

2004 $344,07(

2005 166,21:

Total $510,28:

|

8. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

We have two reportable segments, services provmédalthcare organizations and professionals (H&@)services provided to
pharmaceutical and medical device companies (PNIBg.accounting policies of the segments are thee smthose described in Note 1,
“Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.” We nege and operate our business segments based martkets they serve and the
products and services provided to those marketsst8ntially all sales from both business unitsmw2003 were made to customers in the
United States.
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8. BUSINESS SEGMENTS (continued)

The following is our business segment informatisrohand for the years ended December 31, 2002 208 2001. We measure segment
performance based on operating loss before incarestand prior to the allocation of corporate ogathexpenses, interest expense, and

substantially all depreciation.

Revenues, ne
Cost of revenue
Product developmel
Sales and marketir
Depreciation and amortizatic
Other general and administrati

Segment income (loss) from operatic
*Segment asse

Purchases of property and equipm

Revenues, n¢
Cost of revenue
Product developmel
Sales and marketir
Depreciation and amortizatic
Other general and administrati
Office consolidation charg
Impairment of lon-lived asset:

Segment loss from operatio
*Segment asse

Purchases of property and equipm

Revenues, net of warrant expel
Cost of revenue
Product developmel
Sales and marketir
Depreciation and amortizatic
Other general and administrati
Office consolidation charg
Impairment of lon-lived asset:

Segment loss from operatio
*Segment asse

Purchases of property and equipm

HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

Year ended December 31, 20C

HCO PMD Unallocated Consolidated
$12,016,44 $6,178,63! $ — $18,195,07
2,183,47! 3,569,04. 515,22 6,267,74
1,930,76I 900,02( 416,46¢ 3,247,241
3,143,44. 1,113,71! 187,83 4,444 .99
1,211,57: 432,01: 1,403,87. 3,047,46!
181,35¢ 225,36 4,579,60: 4,986,31
$ 3,365,82 $ (61,529 $(7,103,00) $(3,798,69)
| | | |
$ 5,037,09: $4,617,84! $18,743,70 $28,398,64
| | | |
$ 221,83 $ 178,56: $ 320,08 $ 720,48.
| | | |
Year ended December 31, 2002
HCO PMD Unallocated Consolidated
$ 9,748,52! $ 6,041,06! $ — $ 15,789,59.
1,919,36. 3,688,47! 362,66: 5,970,49!
3,241,341 656,19! 781,27¢ 4,678,82!
4,859,47 1,493,29! 72,25¢ 6,425,02!
2,280,59 480,91 1,632,95 4,394,46
1,126,05. 945,75( 4,337,77. 6,409,57I
164,78 — — 164,78
105,00( — — 105,00(
$(3,948,08) $(1,223,56) $(7,186,92) $(12,358,57)
| | | |
$6,128,78! $ 5,985,37. $20,799,06 $32,913,21
| | | |
$ 308,77¢ $ 177,39 $ 139,36: $ 625,53
| | | |
Year ended December 31, 20C
HCO PMD Unallocated Consolidated
$ 7,957,71 $ 5,545,59 $ — $ 13,503,30
2,646,65; 3,021,41. 104,25¢ 5,772,322
2,688,84! 1,061,67 1,289,88: 5,040,40
4,593,63: 1,295,65! 5,29( 5,894,58I
7,215,93 963,90 1,756,40: 9,936,23!
2,499,57! 911,25¢ 3,713,41! 7,124,24
400,67¢ — — 400,67¢
400,00( — 312,34 712,34
$(12,487,59) $(1,708,32) $(7,181,59) $(21,377,50)
| | | |
$ 15,617,96 $ 5,578,65! $28,050,02 $ 49,246,64
| | | |
$ 808,08: $ 429,04¢ $ 351,31 $ 1,588,44
| | | |



* Segment assets include restricted cash, accandtanbilled receivables, prepaid and other cumeséts, other assets, property and
equipment, and intangible assets. Investments nkeatable securities and cash and cash equivalemtsoa allocated to individual
segments

44




Table of Contents

HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

8. BUSINESS SEGMENTS (continued)

Total loss from operations for the year ended D31, 2001 includes goodwill amortization of #5816 for our HCO business unit and
$345,072 for our PMD business unit. The unallocébsd from operations for the year ended Decembge2@01 includes the gain of

$1.5 million under the caption “Other general adchmistrative” associated with the renegotiatioroof agreement with WebMD
Corporation, formerly Healtheon/WebMD Corporation.

9. INCOME TAXES

Income tax benefit differs from the amounts comguig applying the federal statutory rate of 34%h loss before income taxes as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2003 2002 2001

Tax benefit at the statutory re $(1,200,91) $(5,658,02) $(6,655,81)
State income tax benefit, net of federal ber (114,179 (412,340 (592,109
Nondeductible amortizatic 210,13¢ 2,108,001 1,588,34!
Other 69,41: 67,60: (215,50)
Increase in valuation allowan 1,035,53. 3,894,761 5,875,07!
$ — $ — $ —

| | |

Deferred federal and state income taxes reflechétid¢ax effects of temporary differences betwéencarrying amounts of assets and

liabilities for financial reporting purposes ane timounts used for income tax purposes. Significamiponents of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are as follows:

December 31,

2003 2002

Deferred tax asset
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 105,83: $ 112,42¢
Differences related to business combinati 1,477,88. 1,533,92!
Depreciatior 80,04: 63,02¢
Accrued liabilities 244 ,45. 321,81:
Difference related to warran 1,227,38: 1,227,38:
Research and development cre 180,54( 152,76¢
Other 8,711 6,43¢
Net operating loss carryforwar 15,994,98 14,866,51
Total deferred tax asse 19,319,83 18,284,30
Less: Valuation allowanc (19,319,83) (18,284,30)
Net deferred tax ass $ — $ —
| |

As of December 31, 2003 we had federal and stdtepezating loss carryforwards of $42,964,785 aBdl,&73,978. These losses will expire
in years 2013 through 2023. A portion of thesedegnay be subject to limitation in future years.

We have established a valuation allowance for defetax assets at December 31, 2003 and 2002pdbe tincertainty of realizing these
assets in the future. No federal or state incom@&yments were made during the years ended Deecetbh2003, 2002, and 2001.
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10. STOCK OPTION PLAN

Our 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (2000 Plan) and 1&®4ployee Stock Option Plan (1994 Plan) (the 20@M Rhd the 1994 Plan are
collectively referred to as “the Plan”) authoribe grant of options to employees, officers, diresstand others and such grants must be
approved by the Compensation Committee of the BoaRirectors. The terms of both plans are sub&tiysimilar. Options granted under
the Plan have terms of no more than ten yearsceittain restrictions. The Plan allows the Boar®wéctors to determine the vesting period
of each grant. The vesting period of the optioratgd ranges from immediate vesting to four ydarsonnection with the 2000 Plan,
5,000,000 shares have been reserved for issuarginlg the total shares reserved for issuancautfirmptions to 9,000,000 shares. During
2002, the 1994 Plan was amended to exclude fadfeti@res from shares available for future graris @mendment reduced the number of
shares available for future grants by 1,755,808ubh December 31, 2003.

The weighted average fair value of options gramiad estimated using the Bla8icholes method. The weighted average assumpti@asfor
these estimates include:

2003 2002 2001
Risk-free interest rat 2.5(% 4.2(% 6.0(%
Expected dividend yiel 0.C% 0.C% 0.C%
Expected life (in years 5 5 5
Volatility 60% 60% 60%

The estimated weighted average fair values of aptgranted during 2003, 2002 and 2001 using theeapacing models were $0.93, $0.75,
and $0.70 respectively.

A progression of activity and various other infotioa relative to stock options is presented intdigde below.

2002 2001
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Common Average Common Average Common Average
Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price

Outstandin¢- beginning of periot 2,987,38I $3.6¢ 2,816,71 $4.17 3,125,73 $4.7:
Granted 605,00( 1.4C 570,00( 1.3¢€ 410,75( 1.2z
Exercisec (88,319 1.7¢ — — (8,700 1.21
Expired (140,687 5.12 (50,049 4.54 (112,17Y) 8.67
Forfeited (522,49 3.17 (349,28Y) 3.65 (598,89) 4.01
Outstandine end of perioc 2,840,88! $3.2¢ 2,987,38! $3.6¢ 2,816,71 $4.17%
| | | | ] |
Exercisable at end of peri 1,872,29 $3.91 1,755,67! $4.0¢ 1,306,99. $4.1¢
| | | | ] |

During 2002, and 2001, we issued 11,500 and 5,#8& ®ptions, respectively, to our professionalstdting boards at per share exercise
prices of $1.80 in 2002 and $1.24 in 2001. In catina with these grants we recognized expense mfosgmately $11,000 in 2002 and
$57,000 in 2001.

Shares of common stock available for future grahtsptions totaled 3,082,918 at December 31, 28@8rcise prices per share and various
other information for options outstanding at Decem®il, 2003 are segregated into ranges as follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Average Weighted Average Weighted Average

Range of Number of Exercise Price Remaining Number of Exercise Price
Exercise Price Shares Per Share Contractual Life Shares Per Share
$ 054-$ 1.1¢ 312,30( $ 1.0¢ 5.7 229,80( $ 1.0¢
$ 1.20-$ 2.3¢ 1,469,07. 1.7¢ 6.1 688,05 2.01
$ 2.39-% 35 10,00( 2.4¢ 7.€ 10,00( 2.4¢
$ 3.58-$ 4.7¢ 480,82 3.9¢ 3.7 470,82! 4.0¢€
$ 4.77-$ 5.9¢ 88,00( 5.4z2 4.5 66,00( 5.4z2
$ 5.96-$ 7.11 224,77 6.4¢€ 4.C 191,01¢ 6.4¢€



$ 8.33-$ 9.5( 83,91
$ 9.51- $10.7C  81,40(
$10.71- $11.8¢ 90,59}

8.9¢
10.0C
11.8¢

2,840,88!

$ 3.2¢

46

4.8 83,91! 8.9¢
4.2 61,04¢ 10.0¢
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11. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
401(k) Plan

We have a defined-contribution employee benefit ¢#01(k) Plan) incorporating provisions of Sectitfil (k) of the Internal Revenue Code.
Our employees must have attained the age of 2hawel completed thirty days of service to be el@iil participate in the 401(k) Plan. Un
the provisions of the 401(k) Plan, a plan membey make contributions, on a tax-deferred basistmeixceed 15% of compensation, subject
to IRS limitations. We have not provided matchitgiributions through December 31, 2003.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Our Employee Stock Purchase Plan (Purchase Plemporates the provisions of Section 423 of therlml Revenue Code. Under the
Purchase Plan, 1,000,000 shares of common stoeklies®n reserved for purchase by employees. Thé@sedlan provides for annual offer
periods of twelve months to eligible employees. &lrithe Purchase Plan, eligible employees can psectimmough payroll deductions, the
lesser of up to 15% of their eligible base compgasar 2,500 shares of common stock, at a pricavedent to 85% of the lesser of the
beginning or end of year price. During 2003 and2@@,740 and 35,770 shares were purchased uralptah at an average price per sha
$0.85 and $1.06, respectively.

12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Lease Commitments

We lease office facilities in Nashville, TN, DallasX, Denver, CO, and Raleigh, NC under agreemiraisexpire before or during
March 2010. The Dallas, TX facility is subleaseatthird party through the expiration of the oraitease, which ends January 2007. The
Raleigh, NC facility is currently not being usedoperations, and the lease expires in Septembet. 200

The Nashville, TN lease expires in April 2005 amdvides for two five-year renewal options. Someséeagreements contain provisions for
escalating rent payments over the initial termtheflease. We account for these leases by recogment expense on the straight-line basis
and adjusting the deferred rent expense liabititytlie difference between the straight-line remtezse and the amount of rent paid. The
Company also leases certain office equipment ubdtr operating and capital leases. Total rent esgp@mder all operating leases was
approximately $475,000, $560,000, and $605,000th®ears ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 28§dectively. We also lease certain
computer and office equipment and office furniskifigm various third parties accounted for as edjs@ses.

Future rental payment commitments at December @13 2inder capital and non-cancelable operatingtasith initial terms of one year or
more, are as follows:

Capital Leases Operating Leases
2004 $40,97" $ 753,32
2005 1,212 328,56:
2006 — 211,51
2007 — 116,69¢
2008 and thereafts — 242,33:
Total minimum lease paymer $42,18¢ $1,652,43.
]
Less amounts representing intel (1,970
Present value of minimum lease payments (inclu@B@020 classified as currel $40,21¢
|

Sublease rental income related to the Dallas, TXifiawas approximately $72,000 in 2003 and $60,002002. Future operating lease
commitments have been reduced by sublease incoaygpobximately $65,800 in 2004, $65,300 in 200%,3%60 in 2006, and $5,400 in
2007.

The carrying value of assets under capital leagkigh are included with owned assets in the accoyipg consolidated balance sheets was
$35,289 and $107,526 at December 31, 2003 and 2@§2ectively. Amortization of the assets undercdggital leases is included in
depreciation expense on the accompanying consetidditements of operatiol
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Purchase Commitments

At December 31, 2003 we have purchase commitmenthé acquisition of computer hardware and softwiar an additional hosting facility
in Nashville, TN, see Note 16.

Litigation

We are subject to various legal proceedings arithsléhat arise in the ordinary course of our bussnén the opinion of management, the
ultimate liability with respect to those proceedirand claims will not materially affect our finaakposition, operations or liquidity.

13. LOSS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted net loss per share:

Year Ended December 31

2003 2002 2001
Numerator:
Net loss $(3,412,03) $(16,641,24) $(19,575,92)
| | |
Denominator
Weightec-average shares outstand 20,383,13 20,261,06 19,920,52
| | |
Net loss per share, basic and dilu $ (0.17) $ (0.82) $ (0.9¢)
| | |

For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, & #te calculation of weighted average and egentahares excluded options, warre
and restricted stock because such items wereddative. The equivalent common shares relateduth options, warrants, and restricted s
were 3,092,978 in 2003, 3,246,544 in 2002, and&33 in 2001.

14. OFFICE CONSOLIDATION CHARGE

During 2002 and 2001, we recorded office consdlidatharges for our HCO business unit of approxaiya$165,000 and $401,000,
respectively, as a result of closure of our Ralgigglas, and Boston offices. The charges in 20f&isted of lease obligations of
approximately $165,000. The charges in 2001 catist lease obligations of approximately $245,000 impairment of certain fixed assets
of approximately $156,000. We recorded a liabildy such charges and the expenses are included theleaption “office consolidation
charge” on the accompanying consolidated statenoémigerations. As of December 31, 2003 we have gpproximately $250,000 in lease
obligations and charged approximately $156,000i¢orécorded liability for the impairment of fixedsats. At December 31, 2003, the
remaining balance of accrued liabilities associat@hl these charges was approximately $160,000.

15. STRATEGIC ALLIANCES

We periodically enter into strategic alliances witintent and distribution partners, developmentngas, and other business partners.
Typically, these arrangements provide for paymémtiese partners based on either a percentageefues, hours of courseware developed,
or based on a fixed payment schedule.

In October 2002, we entered into an agreementavitither business partner to provide us with telketang services. During January 2004,
this agreement was extended through June 30, 20@%change for these services, we will provideimimmum quarterly payment of $30,312
per quarter, from January 1, 2004 through Decer@be2004.

16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In March 2004, we extended our agreement with AORBL, which allows us to provide continuing edugatactivities on the exhibit floor at
the annual AORN Congress. The term of the agreemasiextended through December 31, 2007, and meval us to pay royalties to
AORN, Inc. based on sales of continuing educatividies we develop for the AORN Congress, as \aslbther AORN meeting



Subsequent to December 31, 2003 through Februad0®@ we acquired approximately $400,000 in agsddted to hardware and software
for an additional hosting facility.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéunting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

HealthStream’s chief executive officer and chiefficial officer have reviewed and evaluated thecsiffeness of HealthStream’s disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a)Hhd 15d-15(e)) promulgated under the Secufiiehange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange
Act”) as of December 31, 2003. Based on that evianathe chief executive officer and chief finamadfficer have concluded that
HealthStream’s disclosure controls and procedunsare that material information relating to Heatte8m required to be disclosed in the
reports HealthStream files or submits under thehBrge Act is effectively and timely accumulated aothmunicated to them as appropriate
to allow them to make timely decisions regardinguieed disclosure. There have been no changesatthi&tream’s internal control over
financial reporting that occurred during the fougtharter of 2003 that have materially affectedarerlikely to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.

PART Il
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information as to directors of the Company is ipavated by reference from the information contaiimeolur proxy statement for the 2004
Annual Meeting of Stockholders that we will filettvithe Securities and Exchange Commission withihd&ys of the end of the fiscal yea
which this report relates. Pursuant to Generallieibn G(3), certain information concerning ex@oeibfficers of the Company is included
Part | of this Form 10-K, under the caption “ExéeatOfficers of the Registrant.”

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Incorporated by reference from the information edamd in our proxy statement for the 2004 Annuaétifey of Stockholders that we will fi
with the Securities and Exchange Commission witt#i days of the end of the fiscal year to whick teport relates.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ainagement and Related Stockholder Matters

Incorporated by reference from the information eamgd in our proxy statement for the 2004 Annuaétitey of Stockholders that we will fi
with the Securities and Exchange Commission witt#ii days of the end of the fiscal year to whick teport relates.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Incorporated by reference from the information eamd in our proxy statement for the 2004 Annuaétitey of Stockholders that we will fi
with the Securities and Exchange Commission witt#ii days of the end of the fiscal year to whick teport relates.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Incorporated by reference from the information eamd in our proxy statement for the 2004 AnnuaéMey of Stockholders that we will fi
with the Securities and Exchange Commission witt#ii days of the end of the fiscal year to whick teport relates.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Regoon Form 8-K

(a)(2) Financial Statemen
Reference is made to the financial statementsdiecun Item 8 to this Report on Form-K.
(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedt

All schedules are omitted because they are nulicable or the required information is shown ie fBonsolidated Financial Statements
or the notes theret

(a)(3) Exhibits

Number Description

*2.1 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated July 23, 1999, g@@®iverPlatter Education, Inc., SilverPlatter Imf@tion, Inc. and
HealthStream, Inc

*2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated January 5,,2800ng HealthStream, Inc., HealthStream Acquisitjdnc., Quick Study,
Inc. and each shareholder of Quick Study,

*2.3 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated December 16, 488%g KnowledgeReview, LLC, Louis Bucelli and MakdRepik, and
HealthStream, Inc

*2.4 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated January 25) 2@tbong HealthStream, Inc., HealthStream Acquisitipinc., Multimedia
Marketing, Inc., and the stockholders of Multimeiarketing, Inc.

*2.5 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated January 27, 2880@eén Emergency Medicine Internetwork, Inc. andlti&tream, Inc

*3.1 Form of Fourth Amended and Restated Charter oftHS&kam, Inc

*3.2 Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws of HealthStréam

*4.1 Form of certificate representing the common stockpar value per share, of HealthStream,

4.2 Article 7 of the Fourth Amended and Restated Chi— included in Exhibit 3.:

4.3 Article 1l of the Amended and Restated Byla— included in Exhibit 3.

*4.4 Warrant to purchase common stock of HealthStream, tlated June 14, 1999, held by GE Medical Syst

*4.6 Common Stock Purchase Agreement between HealtmSttaa. and Healtheon/WebMD Corporati

*10.170 1994 Employee Stock Option Plan, effective as ofilAb, 1994

*10.2» 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, effective as of Apri] 2000

*10.3" Form of Indemnification Agreeme

*10.4" Executive Employment Agreement, dated April 21,9,98%tween HealthStream, Inc. and Robert A. Fiis

*10.5 Lease dated March 27, 1995, as amended June 6 ah@September 22, 1998, between Cummins Stati@h bk landlord, and
NewOrder Media, Inc., as tene

*+10.6 Development and Distribution Agreement between th&ifeam, Inc. and GE Medical Syste

*+10.7 Education Services Provider Agreement dated Octbp2001 between HealthStream, Inc. and HCA Infaéional echnology &
Services, Inc

*10.8 Form of Employee Stock Purchase F

*21.1 Subsidiaries of HealthStream, It



23.1

311

31.2

32.1

32.2

Consent of Independent Auditc

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursiiao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursudo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z

+ Confidential treatment was received, with respecertain portions of this document. Such posgiarere omitted and filed separately with
the Securities and Exchange Commiss

* Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Registration Statement on Fori-1 (Reg. No. 33-88939).

A Management contract or compensatory plan or arraagt
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(b) Reports on Form-K

The Company furnished a report on Form 8-K oroBet 28, 2003 under Item 12 related to the resoitthird quarter ended
September 30, 200

Notwithstanding the foregoing, information furnishender Item 9 and Item 12 of the Comf’s Current Reports on Form 8-K,
including the related exhibits, shall not be deertaeble filed for purposes of Section 18 of the $ities Exchange Act of 193.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Resyigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized on this 25th day of March 2004.

HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
By: /s/ Robert A. Frist, Jr.

Robert A. Frist, Jr.
Chief Executive Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed &ydhowing persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dathisated:

Signature Title(s) Date

/s/ Robert A. Frist, Ji President, Chief Executive Officer a March 25, 200
Chairman (Principal Executive Officer)

Robert A. Frist, Jr

/s/ Arthur E. Newmau Senior Vice-President and Chief Financ March 25, 200:
Officer (Principal Financial Officer)

Arthur E. Newmar

/sl Susan A. Browni Vice President of Finance and Corpot March 25, 200-
Controller (Principal Accounting Office

Susan A. Brownit

/sl Jeffrey L. McLarei Vice Chairmar March 25, 200

Jeffrey L. McLarer

/sl John Dayar Director March 25, 200-
John Dayan
/sl James Danie Director March 25, 200

James Danie

/s/ William Steac Director March 25, 200
William Stead
/s/ M. Fazle Husai Director March 25, 200:

M. Fazle Husair

/sl Thompson Der Director March 25, 200-

Thompson Den

/s/ Linda Rebrovicl Director March 25, 200

Linda Rebrovick

/s/ Frank Gordol Director March 25, 200:
Frank Gordor
/s/ Ron Hinds Director March 25, 200:

Ron Hinds
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Number Description

*2.1 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated July 23, 1999, @®iverPlatter Education, Inc., SilverPlatter Imf@tion, Inc. and
HealthStream, Inc

*2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated January 5,,2800ng HealthStream, Inc., HealthStream Acquisitidnc., Quick Study,
Inc. and each shareholder of Quick Study,

*2.3 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated December 16, a888)g KnowledgeReview, LLC, Louis Bucelli and Makdrepik, and
HealthStream, Inc

*2.4 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated January 25) 2étbong HealthStream, Inc., HealthStream Acquisitipinc., Multimedia
Marketing, Inc., and the stockholders of MultimeMarketing, Inc.

*2.5 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated January 27, 2680Ge&n Emergency Medicine Internetwork, Inc. andlthi&tream, Inc

*3.1 Form of Fourth Amended and Restated Charter oftH8&kam, Inc

*3.2 Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws of HealthStréam

*4.1 Form of certificate representing the common stockpar value per share, of HealthStream,

4.2 Article 7 of the Fourth Amended and Restated Chi— included in Exhibit 3.:

4.3 Article 1l of the Amended and Restated Byla— included in Exhibit 3.

*4.4 Warrant to purchase common stock of HealthStream, tlated June 14, 1999, held by GE Medical Syst

*4.6 Common Stock Purchase Agreement between HealtmSttea. and Healtheon/WebMD Corporati

*10.1° 1994 Employee Stock Option Plan, effective as ofil&b, 1994

*10.2° 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, effective as of Apri] 2000

*10.30 Form of Indemnification Agreeme

*10.4" Executive Employment Agreement, dated April 21,9,98%etween HealthStream, Inc. and Robert A. Fiis

*10.5 Lease dated March 27, 1995, as amended June 6 ah89SGeptember 22, 1998, between Cummins Stati@ ak landlord, and
NewOrder Media, Inc., as tene

*+10.6 Development and Distribution Agreement between th&iteam, Inc. and GE Medical Syste

*+10.7 Education Services Provider Agreement dated Octbp2001 between HealthStream, Inc. and HCA Infaional echnology &
Systems, Inc

*10.8 Form of Employee Stock Purchase F

*21.1 Subsidiaries of HealthStream, It

23.1 Consent of Independent Auditc

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursiiao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursido Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z

32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z

32.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z

+ Confidential treatment was received with respedertain portions of this document. Such portimese omitted and filed separately with
the Securities and Exchange Commiss



* Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Registration Statement on Fori-1 (Reg. No. 33-88939).

A Management contract or compensatory plan or arraagt
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EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-3744@&ppeng to the (1) HealthStream, Inc.
1994 Employee Stock Option Plan; (2) HealthStrelaa, 2000 Stock Incentive Plan; and (3) HealthStrellc. Employee Stock Purchase
Plan, of our report dated February 10, 2004 (extmptiote 16 as to which the date is March 24, 20@4th respect to the consolidated
financial statements of HealthStream, Inc. inclugtethe Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ethdleecember 31, 2003.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP
Nashvi |l e, Tennessee
March 24, 2004



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Robert A. Frist, Jr., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKlealthStream, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)jHeregistrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our supervisiol
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registraigdosure controls and procedures and presentiadsineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

c¢) disclosed in this report any change in the teaig's internal control over financial reportitngt occurred during the registrant's most re
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal daain the case of an annual report) that has madlteaffected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal cohtreer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anthlve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committieregistrant's board of directors (or persormfopming the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weads®s in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and rtefpwaincial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 25, 2004 /'s/ ROBERT A. FRI ST, JR

Robert A. Frist, Jr.
Chi ef Executive Oficer



EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION
[, Arthur E. Newman, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKlealthStream, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)jHeregistrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our supervisiol
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registraigdosure controls and procedures and presentiadsineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

c¢) disclosed in this report any change in the teaig's internal control over financial reportitngt occurred during the registrant's most re
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal daain the case of an annual report) that has madlteaffected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal cohtreer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anthlve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committieregistrant's board of directors (or persormfopming the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weads®s in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and rtefpwaincial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 25, 2004 /'s/ ARTHUR E. NEWVAN

Arthur E. Newnan
Chi ef Financial Oficer



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of HealthStnednc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the yeadimg December 31, 2003, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#tte hereof (the "Report"), Robert A. Frist, Jhje® Executive Officer of the Company
certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,dapted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanesy@deof 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exg®Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl ROBERT A. FRIST, JR
Robert A. Frist, Jr.

Chi ef Executive Oficer
March 25, 2004



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of HealthStnednc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the yeadimg December 31, 2003, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the "Report"), Arthur E. Newman, Cligfancial Officer of the Company
certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,dapted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanesy@deof 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exg®Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl ARTHUR E. NEWAN
Arthur E. Newman

Chi ef Financial Oficer
March 25, 2004



